
 AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Motto:  "Opportunity Through Diversity; Unity Through Cooperation." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  
 Mission Statement: "The City of Watsonville is dedicated to improving the economic vitality, safety & living environment for the culturally 

rich Watsonville community, by providing leadership for the achievement of community goals & high quality, responsive public services." 
 

Mayor Lowell Hurst, District 3 

Mayor Pro Tempore Karina Cervantez, District 2 

 

Felipe Hernandez, Council Member, District 1 

Eduardo Montesino, Council Member, District 4 

Daniel Dodge, Council Member, District 5 

Trina Coffman-Gomez, Council Member, District 6 

Dr. Nancy A. Bilicich, Council Member, District 7 

 

Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

 
CIVIC PLAZA COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4
th

 FLOOR, 6
TH

 LEVEL PARKING 
WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 

Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

The Council Chambers is an accessible facility.  If you wish to attend a meeting and you will require 
assistance in order to attend and/or participate, please call the City Clerk's Office at least five (5) days 
in advance of the meeting to make arrangements. The City of Watsonville TDD number is (831) 763-
4075. 

 

Meetings are televised live on Charter Cable Communications Channel 70 and AT&T 

Channel 99. 
 

For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call the City Clerk's Office at (831) 768-3040. 

 

 

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 
Spanish language interpretation is available 

 



 

1 
P:\Agendas\2013\CC091013.Docx 
9/5/2013 4:37 PM 

AGENDA 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

September 10, 2013 City Council Chambers  
   275 Main Street, 4th Floor 
 

5:30 P.M. 
 
10.0 CLOSED SESSION 

(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 

Council at this time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 

Statement attached to the Agenda.  

 

6:30 P.M. 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine and will be 
acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus motion. 
The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

 
Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 
 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES OF JUNE 11 & AUGUST 13, 2013 
 

4.2 JOINT RESOLUTIONS APPROVING THIRD LOAN AGREEMENT WITH 
CITY/SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATIONS, 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES & PROJECT RELATED EXPENSES, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $200,000 (Recommended by Redevelopment & 
Housing Director Davison)  
--Report 
--Resolution 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

(This time is set aside for members of the general public to address the Council on any item not on the 
Council Agenda, which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council. No action or 
discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Council Member may respond to 



2 
P:\Agendas\2013\CC091013.Docx 
9/5/2013 4:37 PM 

statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.  All matters of an 
administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to Council will be noted in the minutes 
and may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification and report. 
Any Council Member may place matters brought up under Oral Communications on a future agenda. 
ALL SPEAKERS ARE ASKED TO FILL OUT A BLUE CARD & LEAVE IT AT THE TABLE 
DESIGNATED NEAR THE PODIUM, GO TO THE PODIUM AND ANNOUNCE THEIR NAME AND 
ADDRESS IN ORDER TO OBTAIN AN ACCURATE RECORD FOR THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING.) 

3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

3.3 PRESENTATION OF MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION TO SANTA CRUZ 
COMMUNITY COUNSELING CENTER FOR ITS 40TH ANNIVERSARY 

3.4 PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES TO VICTORIA LEONOR, ANTHONY 
SAAVEDRA, & BRAYAN ALVARADO WITH THE CAB COMMUNITY 
RESTORATION PROJECT FOR THEIR SERVICE WITH THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT SUMMER LUNCH 
PROGRAM  

3.5 PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO COMMUNITY ACTION 
BOARD OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, INC., FOR ITS SUPPORT & ASSISTANCE 
WITH THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
SUMMER LUNCH PROGRAM 

3.6 PRESENTATION BY PAJARO VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL & WATSONVILLE HIGH 
SCHOOL STUDENTS REGARDING THEIR IVY LEAGUE TOUR (15 Minutes) 

4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine and will be 
acted upon as one consensus motion. Any items removed will be considered immediately after the consensus motion. 
The Mayor will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda. 

Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING REPORT OF DISBURSEMENTS 

4.2 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES OF AUGUST 27, 2013 

4.3 RESOLUTION REJECTING CLAIM OF: 
(a) Kristopher Klay (Date of Occurrence: on or about 5/3/13) 
(b) Urban PCS, LLC. (Date of Occurrence: 8/8/13) 
(c) Barrett & Sarah Vitol on behalf of Henry Vitol (Date of Occurrence: 7/9/13) 
(d) Leonor S. Zuniga (Date of Occurrence: 7/13/13)  

4.4 FINAL ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1 (CLAIMS & 
WARRANTS) OF TITLE 3 (FINANCE) OF WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
MODIFY THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE 
WARRANTS 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 



 

3 
P:\Agendas\2013\CC091013.Docx 
9/5/2013 4:37 PM 

7.0 OLD BUSINESS 
 
 7.1 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS AGREEMENTS (Recommended by Deputy City 

Manager Maldonado)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding with Charter 

Communications, Inc., Regarding Complimentary Cable Services to Public 
Facilities & Use of Dedicated Institutional Network through June 30, 2014 

(f) Resolution Approving Master Fiber Agreement with Marcus Cable 
Associates, LLC., Regarding Complimentary Use of dedicated Institutional 
Network through June 30, 2014 

 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 

8.1 CONSIDERATION OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM PURCHASE 
(Recommended by Administrative Services Director Vega)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Appropriating $600,000: $100,000 from General Fund, $100,000 

from Water Enterprise Fund, $100,00 from Sewer Enterprise Fund, $100,00 
from Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, $100,00 From Airport Enterprise Fund, & 
$100,000 from Library Fund for Acquisition of a Financial System 

 
8.2 CONSIDERATION OF CITYWIDE FIBER OPTIC PROJECT-PHASE I, PROJECT 

NO. ST-13-07 (Recommended by Interim Public Works & Utilities Director 
Palmisano)  
(a) Staff Report 
(b) City Council Questions 
(c) Public Input 
(d) City Council Discussion 
(e) Resolution Approving Plans & Specifications & Calling for Bids for Citywide 

Fiber Optic Phase I, Project No. ST-13-07 & Authorizing $480,000 Budget 
Appropriation: $240,000 from Library Enterprise Fund & $240,000 from Water 
Enterprise Fund 

 
8.3  EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA 

 
10.1 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  
 
11.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2(a)(1) of the Government Code of the State of California, this agenda was posted at least 72 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting at a public place freely accessible to the public 24 hours a day and on the City of Watsonville 
website at www.cityofwatsonville.org. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office (275 Main Street, 4

th
 Floor) during normal business hours. Such documents are also 

available on the City of Watsonville website at www.cityofwatsonville.org subject to staff’s ability to post the document before 
the meeting. 

http://www.ci.watsonville.ca.us/
http://www.cityofwatsonville.org/




Vol 1 Min-SA061113 

25 

MINUTES 
REGULAR JOINT SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  

SUCCESSOR HOUSING AGENCY FOR THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, & CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

June 11, 2013  City of Watsonville 
Council Chambers 
275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

6:36 P.M. 

1.0 ROLL CALL 
Mayor Hurst, Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez, and Council Members Bilicich, Coffman-
Gomez, Dodge, and Hernandez were present. Member Montesino was absent  

Staff members present were City Manager Palacios, City Attorney Smith, City Clerk 
Vázquez Flores, Assistant City Manager/Community Development Director Tavantzis, 
Deputy City Manager Maldonado, Interim Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, 
Police Chief Solano, Fire Chief Bisbee, Administrative Services Director Vega, Parks & 
Community Services Director Espinoza, Library Director Heitzig, Redevelopment & 
Housing Director Davison, Assistant Public Works & Utilities Director Rodriguez, Human 
Resources Manager Manning, Airport Manager Williams, Assistant Parks & Community 
Services Director Blachly, Principal Planner Boyle, Finance Officer Hays, Administrative 
Services Manager Reta, Principal Planner Aratin, Sr. Administrative Analyst Maldonado, 
Deputy City Clerk Ortiz, and Interpreter Vazquez-Quintero. 

4.0 CONSENT AGENDA (Continued) 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Council regarding the 
reasons for convening a Joint City Council, Successor Agency, and Successor Housing 
Agency meeting.  

MOTION: It was moved by Member Coffman-Gomez, seconded by Member Dodge and 
carried by the following vote that Consent Agenda Item 4.6 be approved:  

AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Cervantez, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 
Hurst 

NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: Montesino 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING SUCCESSOR AGENCY MINUTES OF MAY 21 & 28, 2013 

6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS  
Administrative Services Director Vega, City Attorney Smith, and City Manager Palacios 
explained reasons to Member Bilicich for considering the budget as a joint item. 

6.1 FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEARS 2013-2015 

(a) Staff Report 
The report was given by Administrative Services Director Vega. 

UNADOPTED

CITY COUNCIL 4.1



 

Vol 1 Min-SA061113  

26 

 
(b) City Council/Agency Questions 

Mayor Hurst thanked Administrative Services Director Vega for his presentation 
and stated the budget was balanced after many changes. 
 
City Manager Palacios thanked City employees for accepting compensation 
concessions. He listed changes along with concessions that were necessary to 
balance the budget and spoke about the possibility of placing a special tax for 
public safety on a future ballot. He added that high pension costs and lack of 
revenue contributed the City’s financial situation.   
 
Administrative Services Director Vega explained for Member Dodge that the City 
was not planning on paying the State the $4.6 million dollars they were 
requesting in result of a loan made between the City and the former 
Redevelopment Agency. He said the City had approximately $3.6 million in its 
cash fund and although the State would pay back the $4.6 million over time, it 
would not put the City in a good financial situation. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member Bilicich 
regarding fund transfers between accounts, updates to the budget, Capital 
Improvements Program, and the City’s Retirement Tax.  
 
Member Bilicich stressed the importance of adding fire personnel to the east side 
of Watsonville in order to help protect residents. 
 
In answering Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez, City Manager Palacios said the 
.077% property tax was used for the City’s Retirement Fund and spoke briefly 
about Measure E. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member 
Coffman-Gomez regarding tax revenue changes, Redevelopment Funds and 
grant funding. 
 
Parks & Community Services Director Espinoza answered questions from 
Member Bilicich regarding parks maintenance, LLMADs, and the summer lunch 
program. 
 
Parks & Community Services Director Espinoza answered questions from 
Member Dodge, Bilicich, and Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez regarding 
distribution of summer lunches and the effects of discontinuing the program. City 
Manager Palacios said he would commit to working with non-profits to ensure 
summer lunches were available.  
 

(c) Public Hearing 
Helen Ewan Storey, Human Care Alliance President, spoke about the importance 
of funding social service providers and was thankful that the Council would only 
be cutting 15% of funding rather than the 30% originally proposed. She stated 
any cuts of funding would adversely affect social service providers. 
 
Dan Chauvet, Watsonville Airport Advisory Committee, spoke about the status of 
the airport budget. He asked Administrative Services Director Vega to aid Airport 



 

Vol 1 Min-SA061113  

27 

Manager Williams in creating a line item budget for the Airport to check for 
accuracy and to reconcile past diversion of funds. 
 
Deutron Kebebew, Papás representative, spoke about the importance of the 
Papás Program. 
 
Jose Elias Marquez, Papás member, spoke about the positive impact the Papás 
Program had on his life.  
 
Norma Sanchez, Program Coordinator for the Shelter Project of Community 
Action Board, spoke about the importance of her program. 
 
The following speakers spoke about the positive impact the Papás Program had 
in their lives.  
 
Jose Rodriguez 
Oswaldo Calvillo Martinez 
Edgar Lopez. 
Sean Dyer 
Richard P. Vazquez-Hernandez 
Ann Jenkins 
 
Sarah Chauvet thanked Airport Manager Williams for his work and said that the 
consolidated services fee was increasing substantially. 
 
Clay Kempf, Director of Area Agency on Aging, spoke about the cuts being given 
to social service funding. He stated it was unfair to pit social services against 
police since they work for a common goal. He said the need was great in South 
County. He encouraged Council to look at a variety of options to help fund social 
service providers and gave examples. 
 
Bob Carr spoke positively about Airport Manager Williams. He expressed his joy 
at Airport Manager Williams finding ways to eliminate the Airport’s debt. 
 
Rhea DeHart, Parks & Recreation Commissioner, spoke about the importance of 
the summer lunch program. She asked Council to act responsibly and help 
preserve summer lunches. 
 
Marsha Hashimoto spoke in support of public safety officers. She urged Council 
not to cut the Police and Fire Department budgets. 
 
Cory Schaeffer, Firefighters Association President, thanked Council and staff for 
working on negotiations. He spoke about the possibility of tabling the Request for 
Proposals and suggested several options to generate revenue for public safety 
services. 
 
Captain Schaeffer expressed sympathy to the family of Mike Chavez who passed 
away previously and requested a moment of silence in his honor. 
 
Chris Johnson-Lyons, Community Action Board, said that CAB staff had been 
distributing lunches in Davenport and were knowledgeable about the Federal 



 

Vol 1 Min-SA061113  

28 

requirements. She offered to engage in conversations with Community Bridges 
and City Manager Palacios to continue the lunch program.  
 

(d) City Council/Agency Discussion 
City Manager Palacios stated that Pajáro Valley Loaves & Fishes was willing to 
help with summer lunches at Marinovich Community Center. He stated interns 
and part time staff could be trained to work with Community Bridges to support 
the summer lunch programs at Callaghan Park. 
 
Mayor Hurst stated it was difficult to provide services with limited funding. He 
encouraged residents to shop within City limits and approach the Council with 
ideas to generate revenue.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez, listed nine items that could generate funding: evaluate 
fees for Code Enforcement, burn tower, grants for Police Department, Capital 
Improvement Projects, business model for burn tower, Manabe Ow, work with 
LAFCO to reduce restrictions, tax measure, Police Code Enforcement, 
internships should be available for local college students to help with workload. 
She asked for ideas from residents. 
 
Member Dodge stated that 64% of the total budget was spent on public safety. 
He thanked the bargaining units for accepting concessions and spoke about the 
increasing costs of CalPERS. He thanked Senior Administrative Analyst 
Maldonado for finding grant funding for the Police Activities League. 
 
Mayor Hurst asked the community to unite and be supportive of the City so that 
the City as a whole could prosper. 
 
Member Bilicich thanked City Manager Palacios for finding staff to work the 
summer lunch program. She stated she would like to help fund the Papás 
Program. She said public safety was a priority and the City should look at ways 
of generating revenue and listed some ideas. She recommended Council look to 
reestablish credibility and spending budget money responsibly. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez stressed the importance of supporting staff and 
generating revenue to be able to do so. She stated her commitment to helping 
generate money and supporting a tax measure if needed. 
 
Mayor Hurst stated that the community needed to collaborate with the City in 
order to strengthen the City. 
 
 
Member Bilicich stated she would like to help fund Papás. City Manager Palacios 
said he would modify item (j) in order to do so. 
 
Member Dodge encouraged residents to become involved in local government. 
 
City Manager Palacios, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, stated Council 
could revisit the overtime costs of the Fire Department and address Chief 
Bisbee’s memo. 
 



 

Vol 1 Min-SA061113  

29 

Member Bilicich stated that hiring firefighters would result in less overtime pay. 
 
Member Dodge stated it would be wise to see a presentation regarding Fire 
Department overtime. 
 
Mayor Hurst thanked staff for accepting concessions and stated the City would 
work to generate revenue. 
 

(e) RESOLUTION NO. 89-13 (CM): 
RESOLUTION NO. 2-13 (SA): 
RESOLUTION NO. 5-13 (SHA): 
JOINT RESOLUTION CITY COUNCIL & CITY COUNCIL IN ITS CAPACITY AS 
SUCCESSOR TO THE HOUSING ASSETS & FUNCTIONS OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE, & SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADOPTING FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014, ACCEPTING PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2014-2015, PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN TRANSFERS OF FUNDS, & 
APPROVING FIVE YEAR (2013-2018) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(CIP)  

 
(f) ORDINANCE NO. 1293-13 (CM): 

ORDINANCE INSTRUCTING COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ TO LEVY & 
COLLECT PROPERTY TAX ON TAXABLE PROPERTY IN CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE FOR FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 7/1/13, FIXING RATE OF 
0.077% THEREOF & ALLOCATING IT TO RETIREMENT FUND 

 
(g) RESOLUTION NO. 90-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING TOTAL ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA STATE CONSTITUTION ARTICLE XIII-B FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 (PROPOSITION 4 GANN SPENDING LIMIT) 
 

(h) RESOLUTION NO. 91-13 (CM): 
RESOLUTION NO. 6-13 (SHA): 
JOINT RESOLUTION OF CITY COUNCIL, OF CITY OF WATSONVILLE IN ITS 
OWN RIGHT & IN ITS CAPACITY AS HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO 
FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 
FINDING THAT THE USE OF FORMER AGENCY’S FUNDS & OTHER 
ASSETS GENERATED FROM THE WATSONVILLE 2000 REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AREA FOR THE PURPOSE OF IMPROVING, INCREASING, & 
PRESERVING THE COMMUNITY’S SUPPLY OF LOW & MODERATE 
INCOME HOUSING OUTSIDE THE PROJECT AREA WILL BENEFIT THE 
PROJECT AREA 

 



 

Vol 1 Min-SA061113  

30 

(i) RESOLUTION NO. 7-13 (SHA): 
RESOLUTION OF CITY COUNCIL IN ITS CAPACITY AS SUCCESSOR TO 
THE HOUSING ASSETS & FUNCTIONS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF CITY OF WATSONVILLE FINDING THAT USE OF FUNDS 
FROM LOW & MODERATE INCOME HOUSING ASSET FUND FOR 
PLANNING & GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS IS NECESSARY FOR 
PURPOSE OF PRODUCING, IMPROVING, & PRESERVING THE 
COMMUNITY’S SUPPLY OF LOW & MODERATE-INCOME HOUSING 

 
(j) RESOLUTION NO. 92-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AWARD OF COMMUNITY & SOCIAL 
SERVICE GRANTS IN AMOUNT OF $212,516 TO DESIGNATED 
COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES; & AUTHORIZING & 
DIRECTING PAYMENT OF SAME FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

 
(k) RESOLUTION NO. 93-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION CONTINUING VOLUNTARY TIME-OFF PROGRAM 
THROUGH 2013-2014  

 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 

 
8.1 EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA 
 
10.1 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  
 
11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting was adjourned at 9.26 pm. 
 

___________________________________ 
       Lowell Hurst, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________  

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 
 



 

Vol 1 Min-SA081313  

11 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL JOINT SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 
August 13, 2013  City of Watsonville 

         Council Chambers 
         275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

 

6:02 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Hurst, Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez, and City Council Members Bilicich, 
Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, and Montesino were present.  
 
Staff members present were City Manager Palacios, City Attorney Smith, City Clerk 
Vázquez Flores, Deputy City Manager Maldonado, Parks & Community Services 
Director Espinoza, Redevelopment & Housing Director Davison, and Principal Planner 
Boyle. 

 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL  

Adrian Mondragon, 1431 Main Street, asked Council to provide additional places for 
people to skateboard. He said many skateboarders were skating at the Overlook 
Shopping Center and it was disrupting business.  
 
Member Dodge explained to Mr. Mondragon that in 2012 Council adopted an ordinance 
allowing people to skateboard in parks. He thanked him for addressing Council and 
asked Parks & Community Services Director Espinoza to follow-up with Mr. Mondragon. 

 
Mayor Hurst recommended that Mr. Mondragon speak with the management overseeing 
the Overlook Shopping Center for additional help. 
 
Mayor Hurst invited Council to the AMBAG meeting on August 14, 2013 and spoke 
briefly about the projects that would be discussed. 
 
Member Coffman-Gomez encouraged downtown business owners to contact Economic 
Development Manager Overmeyer and become involved in the downtown revitalization 
project. 
 

10.0 CLOSED SESSION 
(City Council Conference Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor) 
(a) Public Comments regarding the Closed Session agenda will only be accepted by the City 

Council at this time. 
(b) Closed Session Announcement 
 The City Council will now recess to discuss those items listed on the Closed Session 

Statement attached to the Agenda.  
  



 

Vol 1 Min-SA081313  

12 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9)  

1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 

a) Name of case:   Ethnobotanica v. City of Watsonville — Santa Cruz  
County Superior Court (Case No. CV173820) 

 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9)  
 
1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 

a) Name of case:   City of Watsonville and Successor Agency to the  
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville v. 
California Department of Finance et al. — Sacramento 
County Superior Court (Case No. 34-2013-80001523) 

 
3.0 PRESENTATIONS & ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Continued) (None) 
 
3.2 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

City Attorney Smith reported that Council received reports on the aforementioned Items 
and gave direction to staff. No final action was taken.  
 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 7:11 P.M. 

 
___________________________________ 

 Lowell Hurst, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________  

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 



jd 08/28/2013 2:41 PM Page 1 of 2 
M:\RAHD\AGENDA\2013\September 10, 2013\Staff ReportCity-Successor Agency litigation loan-1.doc 

City of Watsonville 
Redevelopment and Housing Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: August 19, 2013 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Jan Davison, Redevelopment and Housing Director 
     Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

SUBJECT: Resolutions Authorize a City/Successor Agency Third Loan 
Agreement in an amount not to Exceed $200,000 for Enforceable 
Obligations, Administrative Expenses and Project Related Expenses  

AGENDA ITEM: September 10, 2013 City Council/Successor Agency 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council and the Successor Agency to 
the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville adopt the attached resolution authorizing 
the Mayor, on the behalf of the City, and the City Manager, on behalf of the Successor Agency 
to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville, to Execute a Third Loan Agreement 
for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project Related Expenses in an amount 
not to exceed $200,000 to become effective only upon approval by the Oversight Board and the 
California Department of Finance.   

DISCUSSION:  ABX1-26, which was enacted by the State legislature on June 27, 2011 and the 
subsequent decision rendered by the California Supreme Court in the Matosantos case, called for 
the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in California as of February 1, 2012.  As a result, 
the Watsonville Redevelopment Agency ceased to exist and the City elected to serve as the 
Successor Agency to its dissolved redevelopment agency (“Successor Agency”).  The dissolution 
legislation established new county-wide funds called Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Funds 
(RPTTF) wherein what was formally called tax increment is deposited by the County.  County 
Auditor-Controllers then distribute to Successor Agencies only that amount needed to meet 
Successor Agency California Department of Finance (DOF) and Oversight Board approved 
enforceable obligations and administrative expenses with any balance remaining being 
distributed to the affected taxing entities. 

AB 1484, adopted in June 2012 as clean-up legislation to ABX1-26, allowed cities to loan funds 
to their successor agencies for enforceable obligations, administrative costs and project related 
expenses.  Collectively, this legislation specified that litigation expenses are not administrative 
expenses and, as such, are thereby considered project related expenses. 

The City and the Successor Agency have previously entered into two loan agreements wherein 
the City has advanced funds to the Successor Agency and the larger of these loans has been fully 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

jan.davison
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



jd 08/28/2013 2:41 PM Page 2 of 2 
M:\RAHD\AGENDA\2013\September 10, 2013\Staff ReportCity-Successor Agency litigation loan-1.doc 

repaid.  The Successor Agency has now initiated litigation against DOF relative to differing 
interpretations of redevelopment dissolution law.  As such, it is necessary for the City to enter 
into a Third Loan Agreement with the Successor Agency in order to advance funds to the 
Successor Agency for litigation related expenses.  After Oversight Board approval, these 
expenses can then be included on the Successor Agency’s ROPS which is then forwarded to 
DOF for consideration.  Assuming DOF approval, the City can then receive reimbursement for 
litigation expenses from future RPTTF distributions to the Successor Agency from the Auditor-
Controller. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  Approving the City/Successor Agency Reimbursement Loan in an 
amount not to exceed $200,000 provides the City the ability to get reimbursed for actual 
litigation costs currently funded through the City’s risk management fund from future allocations 
of RPTTF received by the Successor Agency, contingent upon approval of the Oversight Board 
and the California Department of Finance.     
 
ALTERNATIVES:  The City Council and the Successor Agency could elect not to approve the 
loan, but doing so would make it impossible for the City to be reimbursed for these 
redevelopment dissolution litigation expenses. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
 
 
cc: City Attorney/Successor Agency Counsel  



Reso No.  (CM) 
Reso No.  (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Third Loan Agreement Reso (CM) (SA).docx 
ri 9/3/2013 3:35:02 PM AJS ______ CJP ______ RAHD________

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 
RESOLUTION NO.__________ (SA) 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 
CITY OF WATSONVILLE APPROVING A THIRD LOAN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY UNDER 
HEALTH & SAFETY CODE SECTION 34173(H) 

WHEREAS, in accord with the provisions of the California Community 

Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et seq. (“CRL”), the City 

Council of the City of Watsonville (“City”) previously established the Redevelopment 

Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public body, corporate and politic (“Agency”) to 

carry out the purposes of and exercise the powers granted to community redevelopment 

agencies under the CRL; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, the Agency was dissolved pursuant to 

Assembly Bill 1X26 (Stats. 2011, 1st Ex. Sess., Ch. 5) (“AB 26”), and its rights, powers, 

duties and obligations were transferred to a “successor agency” (as defined by CRL 

Section 34171(j) and Section 34173); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the City would become the Agency’s 

successor agency (“Successor Agency”) under CRL Section 34173; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CRL Section 34179, an oversight board (“Oversight 

Board”) was established for the Successor Agency; and 

WHEREAS, CRL Section 34177.3 authorizes the Successor Agency to make 

enforceable obligations related to the winding up of the Agency’s affairs, including for the 

acquisition of legal services; and 

CITY COUNCIL 4.2

jan.davison
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Reso No.           (CM) 
Reso No.           (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Third Loan Agreement Reso (CM) (SA).docx  
ri 9/3/2013 3:35:02 PM 

2 

WHEREAS, with the Oversight Board’s approval, CRL section 34173(h) permits 

the City to loan the Successor Agency funds to pay the Successor Agency’s 

administrative costs, enforceable obligations, and project-related expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has incurred certain enforceable obligations 

related to the services of litigation counsel needed in connection with various litigation 

matters in which the Successor Agency is involved (“Litigation Expenses”); and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to loan the Successor Agency certain sums 

required by the Successor Agency to pay Litigation Expenses; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency have prepared an agreement 

entitled “Third Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs 

and Project-Related Expenses” (“Third Loan Agreement”) (a copy of which is 

attached as Exhibit “A”) providing for a loan (“Third Loan”) from the City to the 

Successor Agency in an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($200,000); and 

WHEREAS, prior to becoming effective, the Third Loan Agreement must be 

approved by the Oversight Board and submitted to the State Department of Finance 

(“DOF”) for review in accord with CRL Section 34179(h); and  

WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency desire to approve the Third Loan 

Agreement and to make the Third Loan from the funding source described in Section 3, 

below.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT JOINTLY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AS FOLLOWS: 



Reso No.           (CM) 
Reso No.           (SA) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Third Loan Agreement Reso (CM) (SA).docx  
ri 9/3/2013 3:35:02 PM 

3 

Section 1. Under the authority of CRL Section 34173(h), the City and the 

Successor Agency jointly approve the Third Loan Agreement, in the form attached as 

Exhibit “A.” 

Section 2. The City Council and the governing board for the Successor Agency 

direct the City Manager to execute the Third Loan Agreement on behalf of the City and 

on behalf of the Successor Agency. The City Manager is further authorized, with the 

concurrence of the City Attorney and Successor Agency legal counsel, to approve 

technical, non-substantive amendments to the Third Loan Agreement on the City’s and 

the Successor Agency’s behalf and to otherwise carry out the actions authorized by this 

Resolution. 

Section 3. The City Council directs that the Third Loan be funded from the 

City’s Risk Management Fund.  The Third Loan is to be repaid to the Risk Management 

Fund upon the same terms as the Third Loan is repaid to the City by the Successor 

Agency, including interest. 

Section 4. The approvals and other actions authorized by this Resolution will 

become effective as provided by CRL Section 34179(h). 

 
********************************** 



 

1 
Loan Agreement 3 

W1470-002 -- 1182340.1 

THIRD LOAN AGREEMENT FOR ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATIONS, 

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AND PROJECT-RELATED EXPENSES 

ARTICLE I.  

PARTIES AND EFFECTIVE DATE 

1.1 Parties.  This “Third Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, 

Administrative Costs and Project-Related Expenses” (“Third Loan Agreement”) is reference 

dated as of September 10, 2013.  This Third Loan Agreement is entered into between (1) the City 

of Watsonville, a California charter law city and municipal corporation (“City”) and (2) The 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville, formed and existing 

in accord with Section 34173 of the California Community Redevelopment Law (“CRL”) 

(Health & Safety Code Section 33000, et seq.) (“Successor Agency”). 

1.2 Effective Date.  This Third Loan Agreement will not become effective until the 

date (“Effective Date”) all of the following have occurred: 

A. This Third Loan Agreement has been approved by the City Council as the 

City’s governing body and by the City Council as the Successor Agency’s governing board and 

has been executed by the City’s and the Successor Agency’s authorized officials. 

B. This Third Loan Agreement has been approved by the Successor Agency’s 

oversight board (“Oversight Board”) formed in accord with CRL Section 34179. 

C. As provided in CRL Section 34179(h), five (5) business days have elapsed 

since notice of the Oversight Board’s action approving this Third Loan Agreement was provided 

to the State Department of Finance (“DOF”), unless the DOF requests to review the Oversight 

Board’s action, in which case this paragraph C will be deemed satisfied upon the DOF’s 

approval of the Oversight Board’s action. 

ARTICLE II.  

RECITALS 

2.1 Under the provisions of the CRL, the City Council of the City of Watsonville 

previously established the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public body, 

corporate and politic (“Agency”), to carry out the purposes of and exercise the powers granted to 

community redevelopment agencies under the CRL. 

2.2 On February 1, 2012, the Agency was dissolved by operation of Assembly Bill 

1X26 (Stats. 2011, 1
st
 Ex. Sess., Ch. 5) (“AB 26”), and its rights, powers, duties and obligations 

were transferred to a “successor agency” (as defined in CRL Section 34171(j) and Section 

34173). 

2.3 As provided by AB 26, the City Council took official action electing to become 

the Agency’s successor agency (“Successor Agency”) under CRL Section 34173. 

Exhibit "A" 

1 of 4



 

2 
Loan Agreement 3 

W1470-002 -- 1182340.1 

2.4 On or about June 27, 2012, the provisions of Assembly Bill 1484 (“AB 1484”) 

became law.  AB 1484 modified the CRL and AB 26 in various ways.  As used herein, the term 

“CRL” means Health & Safety Code Section 33000, et seq., as modified by AB 26 and AB 

1484.  Specific terms used and not otherwise defined in this Third Loan Agreement will have the 

meanings given to those terms in the CRL. 

2.5 In accord with CRL Section 34177.3, the Successor Agency created various 

enforceable obligations to conduct the work of winding down the Agency’s affairs, including 

enforceable obligations related to the services of legal counsel needed in connection with various 

litigation matters in which the Successor Agency is involved (“Litigation Expenses”). 

2.6 CRL Section 34173(h) permits the City, as the former Agency’s creating 

authority, to loan or grant funds to the Successor Agency to pay for enforceable obligations, 

administrative costs, and project-related expenses. 

2.7 The Successor Agency has requested that the City loan it the principal sum of not 

to exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) (“Third Loan”) so that the Successor 

Agency may pay its Litigation Expenses.  The City is willing to make the Third Loan under the 

authority of CRL Section 34173(h) on the terms set forth in this Third Loan Agreement. 

2.8 On or about August 28, 2012, the City and the Successor Agency entered into that 

certain “Loan Agreement for Enforceable Obligations, Administrative Costs and Project-Related 

Expenses (for the Period July 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012)” (“First Loan Agreement”).  On 

or about August 28, 2012, the City and the Successor Agency entered into that certain “Loan 

Agreement for Due Diligence Review Costs (for the Period July 1, 2012 – December 31, 2012)” 

(“Second Loan Agreement”).  This Third Loan Agreement does not modify the First Loan 

Agreement or Second Loan Agreement in any respect.  The First Loan Agreement and Second 

Loan Agreement remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. 

ARTICLE III.  

TERMS 

3.1 Third Loan Agreement.  The City agrees to disburse the Third Loan to the 

Successor Agency in periodic installments (each, an “Installment” and, collectively, 

“Installments”) of any amount upon the Successor Agency’s request, so long as the total of all 

Installments does not exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000), exclusive of accrued 

interest.  Each disbursement request must be accompanied by documentation which reasonably 

evidences the amount of Litigation Expenses incurred by the Successor Agency.  The Third Loan 

will be disbursed to the Successor Agency to be held in its accounts and will be used to pay the 

Successor Agency’s Litigation Expenses.  The Third Loan is not a revolving line of credit and no 

further Installments will be disbursed once the total of all disbursements equals Two Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($200,000). 

3.2 Interest and Repayment Terms.  Each Installment will become due and payable in 

full on the March 1 or October 1 (whichever occurs first) following the date of disbursement.  

Each disbursed and outstanding Installment will accrue interest at the rate earned by funds 

Exhibit "A" 

2 of 4



 

3 
Loan Agreement 3 

W1470-002 -- 1182340.1 

deposited by the City into the Local Agency Investment Fund, as it may be adjusted from time-

to-time (“LAIF Rate”), from the date of its disbursement until fully repaid. 

3.3 Inclusion on Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.   

A. The Successor Agency will identify this Third Loan Agreement as an 

enforceable obligation under CRL 34173(h) on each Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

(“ROPS”) to be submitted by the Successor Agency to the Department of Finance for all fiscal 

periods commencing after disbursement of the first Installment until the Third Loan has been 

fully repaid, including interest.  The Successor Agency will request an allocation of property 

taxes from the “Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund” (established pursuant to CRL Section 

34170.5 and administered by the County Auditor-Controller in accord with CRL Sections 34182 

and 34183) (“RPTTF”) on each ROPS covering any fiscal period in which the Successor 

Agency has a repayment obligation under this Third Loan Agreement.  The Successor Agency 

will continue to make allocation requests on all subsequent ROPS until the Third Loan and all 

accrued interest has been fully repaid.  The amount of each allocation request will be equal to the 

sum of the Successor Agency’s repayment obligation arising during the period covered by the 

ROPS plus the remaining balance (if any) of any repayment due during a prior ROPS period 

which was not fully paid. 

B. The Successor Agency will prepare each ROPS as required by the CRL 

and submit it to the Oversight Board and such other governmental agencies as the CRL may 

require from time-to-time.  The Successor Agency will take all other actions as required by the 

CRL or other applicable authority to ensure that the Successor Agency receives an allocation of 

taxes from RPTTF in the amounts necessary to satisfy the Successor Agency’s payment 

obligations under this Third Loan Agreement.   

3.4 Amendment or Modification.  This Third Loan Agreement and the Successor 

Agency’s obligations under it may be amended or modified only in the following ways: 

A. By the mutual written agreement of the City and the Successor Agency, 

following all notices, hearings and approvals required by then-applicable provisions of the CRL 

and other legal authority. 

B. As required to conform to future changes in the CRL, other applicable 

legal authority, or pursuant to an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

3.5 No Other Successor Agency Income or Assets Subject to Repayment Obligation.  

No funds or other assets of the Successor Agency other than property tax allocations from the 

RPTTF may be used for the repayment of the Successor Agency’s obligations under this Third 

Loan Agreement.  

3.6 Remedies for Breach.  If the Successor Agency fails for any reason whatsoever to 

fulfill its obligations under this Third Loan Agreement, the City may, without notice or demand, 

accelerate all payments to become due under this Third Loan Agreement and declare the entirety 

of the unpaid Third Loan principal and accrued interest immediately due and payable. 

 

Exhibit "A" 

3 of 4



4 
Loan Agreement 3 

W1470-002 -- 1182340.1 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 

CITY 

City of Watsonville, a California charter law city and 

municipal corporation 

By: ______________________________________ 

Name:   Carlos Palacios, City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ____________________________ 

         Alan J. Smith, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk as 

Secretary to the Successor Agency 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 

Agency of the City of Watsonville, a public entity 

created and existing under the authority of CRL 

Section 34173 

By: ______________________________________ 

Name:   Carlos Palacios, City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Gresham Savage Nolan & Tilden, PC 

By: ____________________________ 

         Kevin K. Randolph 

         Special Counsel 

Exhibit "A"

4 of 4



CITY COUNCIL 4.1

























































































































Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

13 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
August 27, 2013  City of Watsonville 

         Council Chambers 
         275 Main Street, 4th Floor 

 
 
 

CONTENTS  
5:37 P.M. Session 

10.0 Closed Session 
6:33 P.M. Joint Council/Planning 

1.0 Roll Call 
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
3.0 Oral Communications 
3.1 Report Out of Closed Sess 
3.2 Proclamation Sam Storey 
8.1 Study Alcohol Ord 
8.2 Emergency Items—None  

City Council Meeting 
4.1 Motion Approve Disbursements 
4.2 Motion Approve Minutes 
4.3 Reso 122-13 Reject Claim/ 

Watsonville Square 
4.4 Reconstruct Taxiway Charlie 

(a) Reso 123-13 Accept FAA Grant  
(b) Reso 124-13 Award Bid/Granite 
Const (Pavex) 

4.5 Reso 125-13 Loan Miguel & Jesus 
Chicolla/Benita Garcia 101 West 
Front Sp. 22 

4.6 Item Removed 
4.7 Reso 126-13 Approve JPA Library 

Financing Authority  
4.8 Motion Reschedule 11/26/13 

Council Meeting 
5.0 4.6 Reso 127-13 Approve 

Forgiveness of YWCA Loan  
6.1 Ord Intro Claims & Warrants 
10.0 Info Items 
10.1 Adjournment 

 
5:37 P.M. 

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9)  

1. Pending litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1): 
 

a) Name of case:   Francisco Ibarra v. City of Watsonville et al.  
  — Santa Cruz County Superior Court 
  (Case No. CV173577) 
 

b) Name of case:   Francisco Ibarra v. City of Watsonville et al.  
 — USDC – Northern District of California 
 (Case No. 5:120-CV 02271-EJD) 

 
6:33 P.M. 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Hurst, Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez, and Council Members Bilicich, Coffman-
Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, and Montesino were present. 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

14 

 
Planning Commissioners present were Chair Castillo, Vice Chair Corley, and 
Commissioners Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, Jenkins, and Sarmiento. 
 
Staff members present were City Manager Palacios, City Attorney Smith, City Clerk 
Vázquez Flores, Assistant City Manager/Community Development Director Tavantzis, 
Deputy City Manager Maldonado, Interim Public Works & Utilities Director Palmisano, 
Interim Police Chief Medina, Administrative Services Director Vega, Library Director 
Heitzig, Redevelopment & Housing Director Davison, Human Resources Manager 
Manning, Principal Planner Boyle, Airport Manager Williams, Police Lt. Zamora, Senior 
Administrative Analyst Maldonado, Division Fire Chief Barreto, Administrative Analyst 
Blackwood, Deputy City Clerk Ortiz, and Interpreter Landaverry. 

 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC & CITY COUNCIL 

Margarita Cortez, Cabrillo College Trustee, introduced Dr. Laurel Jones, Cabrillo  
Community College President. 
 
Dr. Laurel Jones, Cabrillo Community College President, introduced herself to Council 
and spoke about the City´s commitment to Cabrillo and future plans to work with the 
community. 
 
Lori Butterworth, Jacob’s Heart Executive Director and Co-founder of the Watsonvile 
Youth City Council, introduced Najara Villalobos and Berenice Valentin, new Youth City 
Council Members. She spoke about Police Chief Solano’s medical condition and read a 
letter of support for Jacob’s Heart on his behalf (distributed letter to Council). She invited 
the Council and Public to participate in the Kidrageous Carnival on September 23, 2013. 
 
Gary Richard Arnold stated that an unconstitutional war was being fought in the Middle 
East. He stated that the war was being fought over false claims of weapons of mass 
destruction. He listed several organizations that were involved in unconstitutional 
actions.  
 
Rhea DeHart, community member, spoke about three separate petitions being 
circulated. She said the first petition would rotate the title of mayor between Council 
Districts, the second petition would call a special election each time there was a Council 
vacancy, and the third petition would call a special election each time a public place was 
to be named. She asked the public to call 831-685-rhea for additional information. She 
asked the public to help circulate the petitions. 
 
Cynthia Iwanaga, Midpen Housing, invited the public to a neighborhood meeting at 124 
Atkinson Lane on August 29, 2013, regarding the Pippin Housing Development. 
 
Christopher Lang stated that his board of directors instructed him to help end violence. 
He stated their goal was to make Watsonville a peaceful model for other cities.  
 
Rebecca Garcia, District 5, spoke about press conference held in Salinas in the month of 
July regarding immigration reform. She spoke about the hardships immigrants face and 
stated the immigration process was ineffective. She commended neighboring cities for 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

15 

adopting a resolution for immigration reform and urged Council to approve a similar 
resolution if it had not. 
 
Member Hernandez spoke about several events he attended over the summer break. He 
invited the public to attend the Watsonville Fly-In & Air Show from August 30th to 
September 1, 2013.  
 
Member Dodge spoke about the Land Trust meeting he attended. He added that the City 
had already adopted a resolution supporting immigration reform. 
 
Member Coffman-Gomez said Chief Solano was in her prayers. She listed events she 
had attended over the summer and invited the public to attend several coming events. 
She invited the public to attend a District 6 Neighborhood Meeting on September 12.  
She spoke briefly about the Rim Fire near Yosemite National Park and the damage it 
had caused. 
 
Member Bilicich spoke about the events she attended over the summer and invited the 
public to the Empty Bowls event on September 7, 2013. She spoke about Father Al 
Mengon’s transfer to a different city and thanked him for his many years of community 
service. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez congratulated the new Youth City Council Members and 
invited the public to attend the September 18, 2013 Climate Action Plan meeting. She 
welcomed Interim Police Chief Medina and wished Police Chief Solano a fast recovery. 
 
Planning Commissioner Danna said that three petitions were being circulated and invited 
the public to participate. 
 
Planning Commissioner Jenkins invited the public to attend the Monterey Bay Birding 
Festival from Thursday September 12 through September 15, 2013. 
 
Planning Commissioner Sarmiento thanked Council Member Dodge and City Staff for 
attending Pájaro Valley Prevention and Student Assistance’s National Night Out event. 
She spoke about her attendance to the Criminal Justice Council Conference and invited 
the public to the October 17, 2013, PVPSA fundraiser at the Appleton Grill. 
 
Member Dodge encouraged the public to help Britney Contreras who was raising money 
to go to London for a cheerleading competition. 
 
Mayor Hurst invited the public to several local events and invited the public to welcome 
the Kawakami delegation on September 6, 2013. He encouraged the public to read the 
Health of Santa Cruz County Report, which could be found at the County of Santa Cruz 
Health Services Agency. 

 

3.1 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION  
 City Attorney Smith reported that the City had settled the case filed December 20, 2012, 

against the County of Santa Cruz in its entirety. [City of Watsonville v. County of Santa 
Cruz et al. (Santa Cruz County Superior Court (Case No. CV175869)] 
 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

16 

3.2  PRESENTATION OF MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION TO SAM STOREY FOR HIS 
LEADERSHIP & SERVICE TO THE MOST VULNERABLE MEMBERS OF OUR 
COMMUNITY & IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF LIFE IN WATSONVILLE & THE 
PAJARO VALLEY 

 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 
8.1 STUDY SESSION ON EXISTING ALCOHOL ORDINANCE  

 
(a) Staff Report 

The Report was given by Assistant City Manager Tavantzis, Lt. Zamora, Interim 
Police Chief Medina, and Principal Planner Boyle. 
 

Mayor Hurst declared a recess at 8:00 P.M. 
 
The Meeting reconvened at 8:10 P.M. 

 
(b) City Council Questions 

Interim Police Chief Medina and Lt. Zamora answered questions from Planning 
Commissioner Jenkins regarding the strain that alcohol outlets placed on the 
Police Department. Interim Police Chief Medina stated he would search for the 
percentage of alcohol related incidents in Watsonville. 
 
 
Interim Police Chief Medina explained, for Mayor Hurst, the difference between 
Police administrative enforcement and on-street enforcement. He added that it 
would be cheaper to hire police officers in administrative positions because 
administrative officers would correct poor management of businesses. 
 
Planning Commissioner Chair Castillo stated alcohol abuse created issues in 
Watsonville and not necessarily alcohol sales. He asked that staff use the ratio 
between alcohol outlets and crime to compare Watsonville to other similar cities 
to ascertain if changing the Alcohol Ordinance would be feasible. 
 
Planning Commissioner Gomez-Contreras stated she would like to continue 
having conversations about how to change the Alcohol Ordinance to allow for 
economic development while suppressing crime. She asked that a study be done 
on how alcohol outlets contribute to underage drinking.  
 
Planning Commissioner Gomez-Contreras excused herself from the meeting at 
8:45 P.M. 
 
Planning Commissioner Sarmiento stated she would like additional meetings for 
people to study the Alcohol Ordinance. She said she would like information on 
how an increase in alcohol outlets affected youth. 
 
Planning Commission Vice Chair Corley stated he would like for the public to 
participate and give feedback on how they would like to change the Alcohol 
Ordinance. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

17 

Principal Planner Boyle answered questions from Planning Commissioner Danna 
regarding entertainment districts and the ability to waive separation 
requirements. 
 
Planning Commissioner Gonzalez stated his support for studying the Alcohol 
Ordinance and listening to businesses as well as those affected by alcohol 
abuse. 
 
Member Dodge stated his support for the Alcohol Ordinance adopted in 2002.  
He stated that police had limited personnel and if there was to be a change; he 
would like for more funding for Police through fees.  
 
Member Hernandez asked for an economic impact study on how much revenue 
could be generated by changing the ordinance and the cost of emergency 
personnel responding to alcohol outlets. 
 
Principal Planner Boyle answered questions from Member Coffman-Gomez 
regarding renewal of special use permits. 
 
Principal Planner Boyle answered questions from Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez 
regarding separation requirements and revocation of alcohol licenses. Mayor Pro 
Tempore Cervantez asked for specific data regarding alcohol and its relation to 
crime in the community.  

 
(c) Public Input 

Shebreh Calantari Johnson, Project Curb (Community United to Reduce 
Binging), said her organization received a grant that funded the study of alcohol 
density and its relation to crime. She stated her organization would be willing to 
collaborate and share data with the City. 
 
Megan Joseph, Director of Community Organizing at United Way, stated that 
alcohol was the most prevalent drug used in the Santa Cruz County. She stated 
the City should concentrate on improving its own community and her 
organization would be willing to partner to reduce alcohol related crime. 
 
Lazaro Olivares, Ranch Milk Market owner, urged the Council to change the 
Alcohol Ordinance so that he could acquire an alcohol license and compete with 
big stores. 
 
Interim Police Chief Medina stated that Katy Mahan and Tom Karns from the 
Pájaro Valley Chamber of Commerce wanted to partner with City in studying the 
Alcohol Ordinance. 
 

Mayor Hurst adjourned the Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting at 9:10 PM. 

 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

18 

9:20 P.M. 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
(d) City Council Discussion 

Member Bilicich stated that alcohol licenses needed to be distributed fairly and 
equally. She said she would like to implement a special fee for violations of 
alcohol sales.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated that the City should look at preventing alcohol 
theft in order to reduce crime. She stated that she would like for a committee 
composed of staff and community members to be formed to study possible 
changes to the Alcohol Ordinance. 
 
Member Dodge stated he supported the Alcohol Ordinance and would not be 
opposed to amending it to include fees and fines. He stated he would not support 
a task force. 
 
Member Montesino stated that the Alcohol Ordinance was working and did not 
need to be amended.  
 
Member Hernandez stated the City had to weigh the cost of patrolling alcohol 
outlets versus the revenue that they generated. He stated he would support an 
entertainment district. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez stated her support for an entertainment district 
and not a revision of the Alcohol Ordinance. 
 
Mayor Hurst spoke about the issues that were present in downtown during the 
80s. He would be looking forward to additional reports from the Downtown 
Revitalization Committee and public comment.  
 
Member Dodge stated the Council should explore an entertainment district 
instead of a revision of the Alcohol Ordinance.  
 
Member Coffman-Gomez stated that the Alcohol Ordinance needed to be revised 
for the entertainment district to be successful. She recommended assembling a 
group of Council, Planning Commissioners, and community members to study 
the Alcohol Ordinance and other options including the entertainment district. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez stated that there should be additional study 
sessions before creating a task force. She said that task forces were small and 
selective; therefore a need for more input was needed before assembling one. 
 
Member Hernandez stated more alcohol outlets led to increased crime. He stated 
his support for an entertainment district without an increase in alcohol outlets.  
 

(e) MOTION: It was moved by Member Coffman-Gomez, seconded by Member 
Bilicich, and failed by the following vote that a study group composed of City 
Council, Planning Commissioners, and community members be assembled to 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

19 

explore changes to the Alcohol Ordinance and study the possibility of a 
downtown entertainment district:  

 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Coffman-Gomez, Hurst 
NOES:  MEMBERS: Cervantez, Dodge, Hernandez, Montesino 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 
Assistant City Manager Tavantzis stated the City would work with the Downtown 
Revitalization Committee to look at the possibility of an entertainment district and 
staff would look at fees/fines for alcohol license violations. 
 
Member Hernandez requested a cost analysis for the downtown entertainment 
district. 
 

8.2  EMERGENCY ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA--None 
 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
 Public Input on any Consent Agenda Item 

Member Bilicich stated that she would be voting “no” on items 4.1 and 4.3. 
 
Deputy City Manager Maldonado answered questions from Member Bilicich regarding 
the reasons for rejecting the claim for damages of Watsonville Square C/O Best 
Properties. 
 
Member Bilicich requested that Item 4.6 be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered under Item 5.0. 
 
City Manager Palacios, in answering Member Bilicich regarding item 4.8, stated that the 
meeting rescheduled from November 26 to November 19, 2013, could be canceled in 
the event that not enough items were on the agenda. 
 
Redevelopment and Housing Director Davison answered questions from Member 
Bilicich regarding item 4.5. 
 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Montesino, seconded by Member Dodge and 
carried by the following vote that Items 4.1 through 4.5 and 4.7 be approved:  
 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Cervantez, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 

Montesino, Hurst 
NOES: MEMBERS: Bilicich (4.1 & 4.3 only) 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 

4.1 MOTION APPROVING REPORTS OF DISBURSMENTS 
It was reported that the City Manager had recommended favorably on claims for the 
warrants for various funds dated June 28, July 9 & 23, and August 13 & 27, 2013, which 
were referred to Council as follows:  
 
 
 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

20 

June 28, 2013 

 
July 9, 2013 

 
 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

21 

July 23, 2013 

 
August 13, 2013 

 
August 27, 2013 

 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

22 

4.2 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES OF JULY 2 & AUGUST 13, 2013 
 

4.3 RESOLUTION NO. 122-13 (CM): 
RESOLUTION REJECTING CLAIM OF WATSONVILLE SQUARE C/O BEST 
PROPERTIES FOR DAMAGES (Date of Occurrence: July 4, 2013) 
 

4.4 RECONSTRUCTION OF TAXIWAY CHARLIE (“C”) AND GENERAL AVIATION 
APRON PHASE 1 
 
(a) RESOLUTION NO. 123-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING $775,953 GRANT FROM DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION (FAA) 
REPRESENTING DESIGN, ENGINEERING, TESTING & CONSTRUCTION 
COST FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF TAXIWAY C & GENERAL AVIATION 
APRON PHASE 1, PROJECT NO. AP-12-01, AT WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL 
AIRPORT 

 
(b) RESOLUTION NO. 124-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION AWARDING $690,101 BID TO GRANITE ROCK 
COMPANY, DBA PAVEX CONSTRUCTION DIVISION, FOR 
RECONSTRUCTION OF TAXIWAY C & GENERAL AVIATION APRON 
PHASE 1, PROJECT NO. AP-12-01, ($862,171 FUNDED: $775,953 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION (FAA) GRANT & $86,218 
FROM AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND)  

 
4.5 RESOLUTION NO. 125-13 (CM): 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS & 
ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO TO RECONVEY EXISTING $30,000 CITY CALHOME 
FUNDED LOAN & FUND A NEW $30,000 LOAN FROM AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
FUND TO MIGUEL AND JESUS CHINCOLLA & BENITA GARCIA SECURED BY A 
LIEN ON A MOBILE HOME LOCATED AT 101 WEST FRONT STREET, SPACE 22, 
WATSONVILLE [APN: 017-581-02]  

 
4.6 ITEM REMOVED. SEE 5.0. 

 
4.7 RESOLUTION NO. 126-13(CM): 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS 
AGREEMENT SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY FINANCING AUTHORITY 
BETWEEN CITY OF WATSONVILLE, COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, CITY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, CITY OF CAPITOLA, & CITY OF SCOTTS VALLEY TO ALLOW FOR 
APPOINTMENT OF AN ALTERNATE MEMBER TO SERVE IN PLACE OF REGULAR 
MEMBER WHEN REGULAR MEMBER IS ABSENT OR DISQUALIFIED FROM 
PARTICIPATING IN A MEETING OF THE LIBRARY FINANCING AUTHORITY  

 
4.8 MOTION RESCHEDULING REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 26, 

2013, TO NOVEMBER 19, 2013  
 

5.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Redevelopment and Housing Director Davison gave a brief report regarding Item 
4.6. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

23 

Leticia Mendoza, YWCA Executive Director, explained the reasons she believed 
the loan issued by the City should be forgiven. She answered questions from 
Member Bilicich regarding their inability to pay the outstanding loan. 
 
City Manager Palacios stated that loans under similar circumstances had been 
forgiven in the past or treated as grants to allow non-profits to continue helping 
the community. 
 
Leticia Mendoza, in answering Member Coffman-Gomez, stated that YWCA was 
requesting that the City loan be forgiven to be able to apply for a loan to pay off 
debt. She stated the YWCA had the ability to pay a loan over years and could not 
qualify because of the outstanding debt with the City.  
 
Leticia Mendoza answered questions for Member Dodge regarding why the 
YWCA became indebted. 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Cervantez thanked the YWCA for absorbing two child care 
centers that were to be closed. 
 

4.6 RESOLUTION NO. 127-13 (CM): 
RESOLUTION APPROVING MODIFICATION OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) REHABILITATION LOAN #1261 TO YWCA OF 
WATSONVILLE  

 
MOTION: It was moved by Member Montesino, seconded by Member Dodge and 
carried by the following vote that Consent Agenda Item 4.6 be approved:  
 
AYES: MEMBERS: Bilicich, Cervantez, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge, Hernandez, 

Montesino, Hurst 
NOES: MEMBERS: None 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: None 
 

6.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, & APPEALS  
 
Council Member Montesino left at 10:38 P.M.  
 
6.1  WARRANT REGISTER PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS  

 
(a) Staff Report 

The Report was given by Administrative Services Director Vega. 
 

(b) City Council Questions 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member 
Hernandez regarding what items were listed on the Report of Disbursements and 
the time frame the report covered. 
 
In answering Member Dodge, Administrative Services Director Vega stated that 
improving the Warrant Register Process would be in compliance with the 
recommendations by the Grand Jury Report. 
 



 

Vol 61 Min-CC082713.docx  

24 

City Manager Palacios stated that changing the Warrant Register Process could 
allow the City to pay vendors in a more prompt manner and make the Finance 
Department more efficient.  
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Mayor Hurst 
regarding checks and balances and internal control process. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Council Member  
Bilicich regarding fiscal oversight and the new process to be implemented. 
 
City Manager Palacios clarified that Council would continue to approve the 
budget and receive reports during Council meetings. 
 
Administrative Services Director Vega answered questions from Member 
Coffman-Gomez regarding overtime, monthly updates, and over-spending.  
 

(c) Public Hearing (None) 
 

(d) City Council Discussion (None) 
 

(e) ORDINANCE INTRODUCTION AMENDING CHAPTER 1 (CLAIMS & 
WARRANTS) OF TITLE 3 (FINANCE) OF WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO MODIFY THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR CITY COUNCIL TO 
APPROVE WARRANTS 
 
MOTION: The above ordinance was introduced by Member Dodge, seconded by 
Member Coffman-Gomez, and carried by the following vote:  

 
AYES: MEMBERS: Cervantez, Coffman-Gomez, Dodge Hernandez, 

Hurst 
NOES:  MEMBERS: Bilicich 
ABSENT: MEMBERS: Montesino 
 

10.0 INFORMATION ITEMS—Written Report(s) Only  
 

10.1 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 10: 53 P.M. 

 
___________________________________ 

 Lowell Hurst, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________  

Beatriz Vázquez Flores, City Clerk 



Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\RC 13-29 Klay.docx 
ri 9/3/2013 9:25:03 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF KRISTOPHER KLAY FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: on or about May 3, 2013) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Kristopher Klay for damages, which was filed with the City 

Clerk on August 19, 2013, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of  , 2013, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Lowell Hurst, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

carlos.palacios
Approved















Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\RC 13-34 Urban PCS.docx 
ri 9/3/2013 9:51:04 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF URBAN PCS, LLC., FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: August 8, 2013) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Urban PCS, LLC., for damages, which was filed with the City 

Clerk on August 12, 2013, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of  , 2013, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Lowell Hurst, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3 

carlos.palacios
Approved











Reso No.              (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\RC 13-31 Vitol.docx 
ri 9/3/2013 9:27:52 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF BARRETT & SARAH VITOL 
ON BEHALF OF HENRY VITOL FOR DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: July 9, 2013) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Barrett & Sarah Vitol on behalf of Henry Vitol for damages, 

which was filed with the City Clerk on July 29, 2013, be and the same is hereby 

rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of  , 2013, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Lowell Hurst, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
 City Attorney 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3

carlos.palacios
Approved









Reso No.           (CM)  
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\RC 13-35 Zuniga.docx 
ri 9/3/2013 9:54:31 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE REJECTING CLAIM OF LEONOR S. ZUNIGA FOR 
DAMAGES 

(Date of Occurrence: July 13, 2013) 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the claim of Leonor S. Zuniga for damages, which was filed with the City 

Clerk on August 22, 2013, be and the same is hereby rejected. 

******************************* 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Council of 

the City of Watsonville, held on the  day of  , 2013, by Council 

Member    , who moved its adoption, which motion being duly seconded 

by Council Member  , was upon roll call carried and the resolution 

adopted by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

   ______________________________ 
Lowell Hurst, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
  City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
     City Attorney 

CITY COUNCIL 4.3 

carlos.palacios
Approved









Ord No.           (CM)     1
P:\COUNCIL\2013\082713\WMC 3-1 Claim & Warrants.docx
ri 9/5/2013 9:55:51 AM      AJS _____ CJP _____ 

ORDINANCE NO.  (CM) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE AMENDING CHAPTER 1 (CLAIMS AND WARRANTS) OF 
TITLE 3 (FINANCE) OF THE WATSONVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
MODIFY THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO 
APPROVE WARRANTS 

Amends §1, and Ordinance No.’s 519 N.C.S., and 1116-01 (CM) 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. ENACTMENT. 

Chapter 1 (Claims and Warrants) of Title 3 (Finance) of the Watsonville Municipal 

Code is hereby amended by amending certain sections to read in words and figures as 

follows: 

Section 3-1.01 of Chapter 1 (Claims and Warrants) of Title 3 (Finance) of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read in words and figures as follows: 

Sec. 3-1.01 Review by the Council. 

All claims and demands, except fixed salaries and wages, against the City or 

upon the City Treasurer shall be presented to the City Council for its review. Claims 

shall be approved by the Finance Director as indicated in section 3-1.09 of this code. 

Section 3-1.06 of Chapter 1 (Claims and Warrants) of Title 3 (Finance) of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read in words and figures as follows: 

Sec. 3-1.06 Execution of warrants. 

The City Manager and Finance Director shall sign and execute all warrants and 

other documents not inconsistent with the Charter of the City. 

CITY COUNCIL 4.4

carlos.palacios
Approved



Ord No.           (CM)                                                                                                                                                                 2 
 P:\COUNCIL\2013\082713\WMC 3-1 Claim & Warrants.docx  
ri 9/5/2013 9:55:51 AM                                                                                                        
 

Section 3-1.09 of Chapter 1 (Claims and Warrants) of Title 3 (Finance) of the 

Watsonville Municipal Code is hereby amended to read in words and figures as follows:   

Sec. 3-1.09 Finance Director’s duties. 
 

The Finance Director shall audit and allow or reject claims presented to the 

Finance Director under Subsections (a) through (j) of Section 3-1.08 in lieu of and with 

the same effect as allowance or rejection by the Council.  

SECTION 2. PUBLICATION. 
 

This ordinance shall be published in the Watsonville Register-Pajaronian and/or 

Santa Cruz Sentinel in compliance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of 

Watsonville. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

This ordinance shall be in force and take effect thirty (30) days after its final 

adoption.     

****************************** 



City Council _______ 

City of Watsonville 
City Manager's Office 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: September 3, 2013 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Mario E. Maldonado, Deputy City Manager 

SUBJECT: Charter Communications Cable Service Agreement 

AGENDA ITEM:  September 10, 2013 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign a settlement agreement with 
Charter Communications, Inc. to continue providing complimentary cable service to public 
facilities and use of a dedicated Institutional Network through June 30, 2014. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Watsonville has a franchise agreement with Charter Communications, Inc that 
is due to expire in July 1, 2014. Part of this agreement requires that Charter offer free 
Internet service and cable service to selected public facilities. Charter also provides the 
City access to a dedicated Institutional Network (I-Net) that is used to connect to six (6) 
remote City facilities. Lastly, Charter provides the City with four (4) public access 
programming channels. 

Under the Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act (DIVCA) of 2006, the California 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUCP is charged with issuing State Franchises for video 
services to telephone companies and incumbent cable providers. Local municipalities no 
longer have the ability to sign local franchise agreements with cable companies.  Both 
AT&T and Charter applied and received approval for a state video franchise to provide 
television services in Watsonville. Under DIVCA cable providers are no longer required to 
provide free cable or Internet service to local governments. Cable companies also are not 
required to provide I-Net services. However, the law allowed for an exception for counties 
with a consent decree with a cable company. The County of Santa Cruz is subject to a 
consent decree.  

DISCUSSION: 
Under DIVCA, the incumbent cable operator can invalidate an existing franchise 
agreement if a competitor such as AT&T begins to offer video services in the City. 
The only exception in the DIVCA language is what we call the John Laird clause [Section 
5930(a)] which basically says that if there is a consent decree in place in a county then the 

1 of 3

7.1a

mario.maldonado
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 2 
MEM    09/03/2013   

incumbent operator cannot seek a state franchise prior to July 1, 2014.   It is the City’s 
position that since there is a valid consent decree in Santa Cruz County then Charter 
cannot breach the contract prior to July 1, 2014. The CPUC staff agreed with City’s view 
that if indeed there was a valid consent decree in place, and then the entire county would 
be subject to the language in Section 5930(a).  In late 2009 the City provided the CPUC 
with a copy of the consent decree in place in Santa Cruz County, but the CPUC never 
issued a written response. Charter was approved for a state franchise in 2009 due to 
CPUC inaction on the application. 

On October 12, 2010 staff requested and received an explanation from the CPUC 
indicating how Charter received a state franchise. The CPUC did not take official action on 
Charter’s application, thus by law the State Franchise is deemed granted. However, the 
CPUC did say that “if the City’s reading of the statute [Sec 5930] is correct, Charter 
does not have a state franchise by operation of law, and in fact, the prior local 
franchise is still in effect.” According to the CPUC, the City would have to take legal 
action against Charter to enforce Section 5930(a) of DIVCA.  There is a four year statute 
of limitation in California to sue over breach of contract.  Therefore a dispute arose 
between Charter and the City regarding the natural expiration of the local franchise.  

In an effort to avoid legal action by either party, Charter has offered to settle the matter 
and honor obligations outlined in the City’s April 11, 2000 franchise agreement though 
June 30, 2014. Charter commits to continue offering free Internet service and cable 
service to selected public facilities (City and Schools) and to provide the City access to the 
I-Net. There would be no changes to the City’s use of four PEG channels.   

In accordance with the spirit of Section 5930(a) of DIVCA, City staff negotiated an 
agreement with Charter that ensures complimentary cable and Internet services to public 
facilities through June 30, 2014. Similarly, complimentary I-Net services will continue to be 
offered at no cost for one more year. The City has notified the school district that this free 
cable service will end on June 30, 2014. City staff is working on an alternative to both the 
I-Net and cable service to public facilities. Both Charter and AT&T have expressed interest 
in offering discounted services to public entities.  Come July 1, 2014 these services will be 
managed by Charter Business and the City can elect to pay or discontinue  the service. 

The Memorandum of Understanding (settlement agreement) regarding complimentary 
cable services, Internet service and I-Net to public facilities lists all the locations currently 
receiving these free services. The MOU also references the “Master Fiber Agreement” 
which delineates the terms and conditions for use of the I-Net and is marked “confidential”. 
Charter was made aware that as part of the City’s approval process the document will be 
made public. Their legal team approved public release of agreement on August 23, 2013.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
There is no financial impact associated with this agreement.  

ATTACHMENT:   
A. Charter e-mail regarding Master Fiber Agreement being marked confidential. 

cc: City Attorney 

 2 of 3



9/3/13 City of Watsonville Mail - Fwd: Charter MOU and Draft Fiber Agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=f3ecf42083&view=pt&search=sent&msg=140e47b12f5061fe

Mario Maldonado <mario.maldonado@cityofwatsonville.org>

Fwd: Charter MOU and Draft Fiber Agreement

Mario Maldonado <mario.maldonado@cityofwatsonville.org> Tue, Sep 3, 2013 at 8:40 AM
To: Irwin Ortiz <irwin.ortiz@cityofwatsonville.org>
Cc: Beatriz Flores <beatriz.flores@cityofwatsonville.org>

Hi Irwin,
This email confirms that Charter was made aware that the Master Fiber Agreement marked "confidential" would
be made public as part of the City Council approval process. Their legal team signed off on it on August 23rd. 

Mario

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Ludovici, Lisa M <Lisa.Ludovici@charter.com>
Date: Fri, Aug 23, 2013 at 1:01 PM
Subject: RE: Charter MOU and Draft Fiber Agreement
To: Mario Maldonado <mario.maldonado@cityofwatsonville.org>

Mario – Charter is fine with these documents going to City Council.  Thank you for giving us the
opportunity to consider the situation.

Lisa Ludovici, Senior Manager, Government Relations

Central and Northern California

Office: 805-783-4945  l   Mobile: 805-550-1627

270 Bridge Street, San Luis Obispo, CA  93401

I AM CHARTER

Attachment A

1 of 1

mailto:Lisa.Ludovici@charter.com
mailto:mario.maldonado@cityofwatsonville.org


Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Agreement MOU with CCO (Charter).docx 
ri 9/10/2013 11:26:32 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ CM  ______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND CCO SOCAL I, LLC., A 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, REGARDING COMPLIMENTARY 
CABLE SERVICES TO PUBLIC FACILITIES AND USE OF A 
DEDICATED INSTITUTIONAL NETWORK THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014, 
AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Watsonville

and CCO SoCal I, LLC., a limited liability company, regarding complimentary cable 

services to public facilities and use of a dedicated Institutional Network through June 30, 

2014, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, is fair 

and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such Memorandum of Understanding for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

*************************************** 

CITY COUNCIL 7.1e

REVISED

roxanna.ibarra
Highlight



 

 
 

 
  Page 1 of 5

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE  
AND  

CCO SOCAL I, LLC 
REGARDING COMPLIMENTARY CABLE SERVICES TO PUBLIC FACILITIES 

 

THIS  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into by and between 

the City of Watsonville, a duly authorized municipal corporation of the State of 

California ("City"), and CCO SoCal I, LLC (“Charter”) this _____ day of September 

2013.  The City and Charter agree as follows: 

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, Charter Communications, Inc has operated  a Cable System in the 

City pursuant to City Ordinance No. 1054-98 (CM), dated June 9, 1998 and Franchise 

Agreement authorized by Resolution No. 98-00 (CM), dated April 11, 2000 (Local 

Franchise); and 

WHEREAS, on September 29, 2009, Charter applied to the CPUC to amend 

State Franchise No. 0009 issued to Charter Communications Properties LLC (CCP 

LLC), to include the City of Watsonville (State Franchise) under Section 5920(c) related 

to a telecommunications competitor entering the video marketplace; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2011, CCP LLC amended its State Franchise to 

name CCO SoCal I, LLC as the holder of the State Franchise;  

WHEREAS, the Digital Infrastructure Video and Competition Act of 2006 

(DIVCA) requires that when a competitor enters the marketplace and notifies the 

incumbent cable operator, the incumbent cable operator has the right to move the local 

franchise to a State Franchise; and  



 

 
 

 
  Page 2 of 5

WHEREAS, DIVCA also requires that the incumbent cable operator must 

continue providing free cable services to community buildings and fulfills Institutional 

Network (I-NET) obligations under the terms identified in the local franchise until the 

natural expiration of the former franchise; and  

WHEREAS, a dispute has arisen between Charter and the City regarding the 

natural expiration date of the Local Franchise;  

WHEREAS, Charter and the City desires to establish a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the City and Charter regarding complimentary cable 

services to public facilities and fiber access through an I-NET provided to the City under 

the former cable franchise; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has determined that public interest would be 

served by this MOU agreement with Charter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Charter do hereby agree as follows: 

The City agrees that the State Franchise governs. 

 

1. Service to Public Facilities 

a. Charter agrees to continue providing one (1) courtesy outlet of 

basic cable video service to all public facilities listed below until June 30,  2014, after 

which, all complimentary services will be transitioned to a paying status with Charter’s 

business services. The City will notify Charter Business prior to June 30, 2014 of 

locations, if any, that should continue to receive basic cable services on a paying status.  

 

 

 



 

 
 

 
  Page 3 of 5

 

PUBLIC FACILITIES  ADDRESS 
City of Watsonville Buildings  
Watsonville Ramsay Family Center 1301 Main Street 
Watsonville Senior Center 114  E 5th Street 
Watsonville Marinovich Community Center 120 2nd Street 
Watsonville GHWR Youth Center 30 Maple Ave 
Watsonville Child Care Center 32 Madison Street 
City Administration Civic Plaza 275 Main Street, Suite 400 
Watsonville Fire Department Station 1 115 2nd St 
Watsonville Fire Department Station 2 370 Airport Blvd 
Watsonville Main Library 275 Main Street, Suite 100 
Cabrillo Community College 310 Union Street 
Old City Hall 250 Main Street 
Watsonville Veteran Memorial Hall 215 East Beach St. 
City of Watsonville  ECYN Computer Lab 231 Union Street 
Watsonville Police Department  215 Union Street. 
Fowle Reservoir  1509 Freedom Blvd. 
Watsonville Municipal Airport 100 Aviation Way 
Municipal Service Center 320 Harvest Drive 
Watsonville Police Department 215 Union St. 
Fowle Reservoir 1509 Freedom Blvd. 
Watsonville Municipal Airport 100 Aviation Way 
Municipal Service Center 320 Harvest Drive 
PVUSD Public Schools  
EA Hall Middle School 201 Brewington Ave 
Watsonville High School 250 Beach Street 
HA Hyde Elementary School 125 Alta Vista St. 
Linscott Elementary School 220 Elm St. 
MacQuidy School 330 Martinelli St  
Amesti Elementary School 25 Amesti Rd 
Calabasas Elementary School 202 Calabasas Rd 
Tornley School 330 Martinelli St, Rear 
New Pajaro School 521 Main St. Ste R 
Ohlone Elementary School 21 Bay Farms Rd 
Starlight Elementary School 225 Hammer Dr. 

 

b. In addition, the following three (3) locations currently receiving the 

lowest speed of high speed data service (5mg upstream /512kbs downstream) will 

continue to receive one (1) free outlet of that current level of Internet service, subject to 

Charter’s acceptable use policy, until June 30, 2014, after which, all complimentary 

services will be transitioned to a paying status with Charter Business Services.   



 

 
 

 
  Page 4 of 5

The one (1) connection to the three (3) locations shall be made to one (1) 

computer and shall not be used to connect to an Ethernet router, a wireless router or for 

any other wireless or wired networking purpose not otherwise authorized herein: 

i. Watsonville Fire Department Station 2, 370 Airport Blvd, Watsonville;  

ii. City of Watsonville ECYN Computer Lab, 231 Union Street, 

Watsonville; and 

iii. New Pajaro School, 521 Main St. Ste R, Watsonville. 

The City will notify Charter Business prior to June 30, 2014 of locations, if any, 

that should continue to receive high speed data services on a paying status.   

 
2.   Dedicated Fiber I-NET.  Charter agrees to continue providing dedicated 

dark fiber optic cable for video and data transmission to all public facilities listed below 

and identified in I-Net fiber map in Exhibit A under the terms and conditions included in 

the agreement known as the Master Fiber Agreement until June 30, 2014.  After which, 

all I-NET complimentary services will be transitioned to a paying status with Charter 

Business Services. The City will notify Charter Business Services prior to June 30, 2014 

of locations, if any, that should continue to receive I-NET Services on a paying status.   

1. Watsonville Fire Station #2 
2. Freedom Branch Library 
3. Fowle Reservoir 
4. Ramsay Park Family Center 
5. Wastewater Treatment Facility  
6. Watsonville Vets Hall 
7. Watsonville High School, Video Academy (Rm. 126) 
8. Watsonville Civic Plaza Council Chambers 

 
3.  The City acknowledges that CCO SoCal I, LLC provides Broadband 

service to the City of Watsonville as a State Franchise holder under the oversight of the 

California Public Utilities Commission Video Franchise Division and agrees that, except 



 

 
 

 
  Page 5 of 5

as provided herein above, all provisions of DIVCA that apply to the holders of a State 

Franchise are applicable to the services provided by CCO SoCal I, LLC to the City. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOU the day 

and year first hereinabove written. 

 

   CITY                  CHARTER 

CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 
 
 
By___________________________ 
Carlos J. Palacios 
City Manager 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By_________________________ 
Beatriz V. Flores 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By_________________________ 
Alan J. Smith  
City Attorney 

CCO SOCAL I, LLC 
 
 
 
By_________________________ 
Mark E. Brown 
Corporate Vice President, Gov Affairs 
Charter Communications, Inc 

 

  
 



1 of 1

mario.maldonado
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Agreement Master Fiber with Charter Comm.docx 
ri 9/10/2013 11:20:26 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ CM  ______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING MASTER FIBER AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE AND CCO SOCAL I, LLC., A LIMITED 
LIABLITY COMPANY, REGARDING COMPLIMENTARY USE OF 
DEDICATED INSTITUTIONAL NETWORK THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014, 
AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Master Fiber Agreement between the City of Watsonville and

CCO SoCal I, LLC., a limited liability company, regarding complimentary use of a 

dedicated Institutional Network for video and data transmission to public facilities through 

June 30, 2014, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference, is fair and equitable and is hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute

such agreement for and on behalf of the City of Watsonville. 

*************************************** 

CITY COUNCIL 7.1f

REVISED

roxanna.ibarra
Highlight



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MASTER FIBER AGREEMENT 
 
 

Between 
 

The City of Watsonville 
 

and 
 

CCO SoCal I, LLC  
 
 

Dated 9/10/2013  



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

MASTER FIBER AGREEMENT 
 

This Master Fiber Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of ____day of September, 2013 by and between 
CCO SoCal I, LLC (“Charter Business” or "Charter"), a Delaware limited liability company on behalf of itself 
and any of its Affiliates (“Provider”) and the City of Watsonville (“Recipient”), each a “Party.” 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Recipient and Provider wish to establish an agreement under which Recipient has previously 
obtained from Provider a license to exclusively use dark fibers along such route of Provider for Recipient’s use, 
each as specified in Fiber Attachment.  The form of consideration paid shall be set forth in Fiber Attachment.  
With respect to all matters in which Provider is providing fibers or other associated rights to Recipient, Provider 
shall be referred to as “Provider” and the Recipient receiving those fibers shall be referred to as “Recipient”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants contained herein, and other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1.  DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings ascribed to them: 
 
“Affiliate” shall mean any Person that directly or indirectly controls or is controlled by or is under common 
control with, or is managed by, the specified Person.  For purposes of this definition only, "control" means (i) in 
the case of corporate entities, direct or indirect ownership of at least fifty percent (50%) of the stock or 
participating shares entitled to vote for the election of directors, and (ii) in the case of non-corporate entities, 
direct or indirect ownership of at least fifty percent (50%) of the equity interest with the power to participate in 
the management and policies of such non-corporate entity. 
 
“Force Majeure Event” means an unforeseen event beyond the reasonable control of a Party. 
 
“Cable” shall mean all Provider fiber optic cable now or hereafter containing the Licensed Fiber(s). 
 
“Claims” shall mean causes of action, losses, claims, liabilities, costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and related necessary legal costs), damages for injury to or death of Persons, impairment to the environment, 
and loss of or damage to property. 
 
“Costs” shall mean one hundred and fifteen percent (115%) of all direct internal and third party costs incurred 
by Provider in performing the services or work and which it utilizes in billing third parties for reimbursable 
projects. 
 
“Imposition” shall mean all taxes, fees, levies, imposts, duties, charges or withholdings of any nature 
(including, without limitation, gross receipts taxes and franchises, license, and/or permit fees) together with any 
penalties, fines, assessments or interest thereon, arising out of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement and/or imposed upon the Licensed Fiber(s) by any federal, state, or local government or other 
public taxing authority of competent jurisdiction. 
 
“Person” shall mean any individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint venture, trust, 
business trust, cooperative or association, and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns of such Person where the context so admits. 
 
“Licensed Fiber(s)” shall mean the optical fibers in the number and of the type specified in Fiber Attachment 
along the System Route and licensed to Recipient. 
 
“Rights of Way” shall mean the land and other rights granted to Provider by a third party through or by way of 
the Underlying Rights. 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

  
“Specifications” shall mean the specifications set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto with respect to the 
Licensed Fiber(s). 
 
“System” shall mean the fiber optic communication system along the System Route. 
 
“System Route” shall mean the route of the Licensed Fiber(s) set forth in Fiber Attachment.  
 
“Term” shall mean a time period of One (1) years from the Effective Date of this Agreement. 
 
“Underlying Rights” shall mean all deeds, leases, easements, rights of way, licenses, franchises, permits 
and other rights, titles or interests pertaining to the underlying real property and/or rights-of-way over and/or 
within which the Licensed Fiber(s) shall be located, as are necessary for the construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance or repair of the System, including all uses of the System by Recipient hereunder. 
 

ARTICLE 2. GRANT OF LICENSE 

2.1. Grant of License to Recipient. In exchange for the consideration referenced in Fiber Attachment, and 
subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, Provider grants to Recipient a license to use the Licensed Fiber(s) 
for the Term (“License”); Recipient acknowledges that this grant of License expressly excludes the grant by 
Provider to Recipient of any rights or interest in the Underlying Rights. Provider agrees to use commercially 
reasonable efforts to maintain all Underlying Rights through the Term. 
 
2.3  Legal Title.  Legal title to the System, including fiber and cable sheathing and any bridge attachments, 
conduits, brackets, insulators, fixtures, guy wires, anchors, splice boxes, fiber distribution centers and other 
hardware needed or used to fasten or support the Cable, shall remain with and be held by Provider.  Neither 
anything contained in this Agreement, nor any use, however extended, of the Licensed Fiber(s), nor any 
placement of Recipient's facilities on or in the System shall create or vest (or be construed as creating or vesting) 
in Recipient any right, title or interest in or to any real or personal property owned by Provider other than the rights 
specified herein with regard to the Licensed Fiber(s). 
 
2.4 No Liens/Encumbrances.  Recipient shall keep the System free from any encumbrances, liens, rights or 
claims of any third party attributable to Recipient that adversely affects or impairs directly or indirectly Provider’s 
exclusive ownership and use of the System. 
 
2.5 Permits; Physical Plant and Required Rights. Provider shall obtain (and cause to remain effective 
throughout the Term) all Underlying Rights.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, it is 
expressly understood that Recipient shall be solely responsible for compliance with all legal and regulatory 
requirements associated with its business, operation or use of the Licensed Fiber(s) including maintaining all 
required franchises, permits, authorizations, licenses, approvals or other consents (other than the Underlying 
Rights), and Provider shall have no responsibility or liability whatsoever in connection therewith, provided, 
however, that except for any increases in pole attachment rates that may be predicated, based upon, or caused by 
Recipient’s use of the Licensed Fiber(s), which Provider shall be entitled to pass through to Recipient and 
Recipient shall pay to Provider within forty-five (45) days of Recipient’s receipt of an invoice therefore, Provider 
shall remain responsible for obtaining and maintaining during the Term for Recipient, at Provider’s sole cost and 
expense, all Underlying Rights to freely use without additional permissions of any kind, the Licensed Fiber(s) to 
which Recipient is granted the License.   
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

ARTICLE 3.   ACCEPTANCE and MAINTENANCE 

3.1 Maintenance.  
(a)  Provider shall maintain and repair the Licensed Fiber(s) pursuant to the specifications set forth in 
Exhibit C so as to assure the continuing conformity of the Licensed Fiber(s) with their respective specifications.  
Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, upon expiration of the complementary use of 
the Licensed Fiber(s) Recipient is receiving from Provider, the Costs of procurement, installation, splicing, 
splice testing and other Costs associated with the replacement or restoration of the Cable for Provider facilities 
in excess of $10,000for any event or series of closely related events shall be shared pro-rata among all users 
of the Cable according to the total number of fibers each user has/is using in the same route as the Cable 
which is to be restored or replaced provided that such restoration or repair is not the result of the negligence or 
willful misconduct of one of the parties hereto, in which case the damage-causing party shall bear the entire 
cost thereof (proportionate to such party’s responsibility if both respective parties are at fault).  Provider, at 
Recipient’s sole expense and at Provider's then-prevailing rates, shall perform maintenance and repair 
necessitated by Recipient's negligence or willful misconduct or upon Recipient's elective maintenance or repair 
requests.  For cases where pro-rata cost of repair/replacement of the Licensed Fiber(s) exceeds $25,000 
unless the same was caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Recipient, in which case Recipient 
shall reimburse Provider for the entire cost thereof (proportionate to such Recipient’s responsibility if other 
parties are at fault), Recipient may choose to not pay such expenses and consequently forfeit all rights to the 
Licensed Fiber(s) requiring replacement or restoration, and Provider shall have no obligations with respect to 
such affected Licensed Fiber(s).  Recipient shall not be responsible for any maintenance or repair of any 
Provider equipment except as set forth above. 
 
(b)  Provider shall respond to any interruption of service or failure of the Licensed Fiber(s) to operate in 
accordance with this Agreement and in accordance with the procedures set forth in Exhibit C.  
 
(c)  Work and associated costs of such work outside of that described herein shall be agreed to by the 
parties and documented in an Amendment to this Agreement (and signed by Recipient and Provider).  
 
(d)   Provider shall be responsible for routine maintenance of Cable and costs thereof not specifically due to 
requirements of Recipient as set forth in Exhibit C, including Cable locates.  
 
3.2 Relocation.  If, (i) Provider is required by a governmental or other authority to relocate any portion of the 
System (including, without limitation, the grantor of the Underlying Rights if such relocation is not being required as 
a result of Provider's failure to observe and perform its obligations under such Underlying Rights or this 
Agreement), including any of the facilities used or required in providing the License in the Licensed Fiber(s), 
including any condemnation or taking under the power of eminent domain of all or any portion of the System, or (ii) 
with Recipient's concurrence upon Provider's request, Provider may relocate such portion of the System, then 
Provider shall give Recipient sixty (60) days prior notice of any such relocation, if possible, and shall proceed with 
such relocation, including, but not limited to, the right to determine the extent of, the timing of, and methods to be 
used for such relocation; provided that any such relocation shall entail construction and testing in accordance with 
the Specifications and requirements set forth herein.  Provider shall deliver to Recipient updated as-builts or 
building plans, as applicable, with respect to any relocated facilities not later than one hundred eighty (180) days 
following the completion of such relocation. The cost of any relocation not reimbursed by such governmental or 
other authority shall be allocated pro-rata pursuant to Section 3.1(a) unless the allocated pro rata costs of such 
relocation exceed $10,000.00, in which case Recipient shall have the right to elect in its sole discretion not pay 
such expenses within six (6) months after having received notice from Provider of such planned relocation and 
consequently forfeit all rights to the Licensed Fiber(s) to be relocated.  
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

ARTICLE 4.  DELIVERY, USE AND CONNECTION 

4.1 Access.  Provider will provide Recipient with access to the Licensed Fiber(s) at such hand holes and 
splice points with existing slack coils on the System Route (“Connecting Points”) as reasonably requested by 
Recipient, subject only to the requirements in the Underlying Rights and provided that such access points do not 
materially interfere with any Provider facilities. 
For Licensed Fiber(s) terminating on and/or traversing across Recipient’s (or its contractor’s or agent’s) 
property, Recipient will provide Provider with access to the Licensed Fiber(s) at any point along the fiber up to 
and including the splice point and/or demarcation. 
 
4.2 Use of Facilities.  Recipient may use the Licensed Fiber(s) for its internal uses to provide any lawful 
communications services provided, however, that Recipient shall not resell, re-License, or permit a third party to 
use or otherwise convey in any manner, directly or indirectly, the Licensed Fiber(s) it receives herein.  Additionally, 
Recipient shall not use the Licensed Fiber(s) in any manner that is not in compliance with (i) any and all applicable 
government codes, ordinances, laws, rules, regulations and/or restrictions, and (ii) the Underlying Rights, as such 
may be amended from time to time. Recipient shall not use any product or service that fails to comply with any 
applicable standard industry safety rules or that would cause any Cable or related facility of Provider to violate any 
state or federal environmental laws. Recipient shall have no limitations on the types of electronics or technologies 
employed to utilize the Licensed Fiber(s) subject to its use of commercially reasonable safety procedures and so 
long as such electronics or technologies do not interfere with the quiet use and enjoyment of or create any risk of 
damage to all or any portion of the System used by Provider or any other user of the System. 
 
Except as otherwise set forth herein, the Recipient may use the institutional network for any legitimate 
governmental purpose that does not compete with any service or product offered by Provider.  Unless 
otherwise prohibited herein, the Recipient shall have no limitations on the types of electronics or technologies 
employed to utilize the institutional network subject to its use of commercially reasonable safety procedures 
and so long as such electronics or technologies do not damage the institutional network or interfere with or 
create any risk of damage to all or any portion of Provider’s cable system.  The Recipient shall not lease, sub-
license, provide transport services over or sell any portion of the institutional network, including any bandwidth 
provided by it, to any other entity, whether commercial, noncommercial or governmental, nor engage or allow 
any party authorized by the Recipient to engage in any activities that would result in business competition 
between the Recipient and Provider, or that may result in loss of business opportunity for Provider.  The 
Recipient shall not use the institutional network in any manner that is not in compliance with any and all 
applicable government codes, ordinances, laws, rules, regulations and/or restrictions.  The Recipient shall not 
use or permit third-parties to use the institutional network to achieve unauthorized access to any computer 
systems, software, data, or other copyright or patent protected material. The Recipient agrees not to interfere 
with other customer’s use of Provider’s cable system and services. 
 
4.3 Connection.  
(a) If Recipient desires to connect other fiber optic cables to the Licensed Fiber(s) or create connections 
with buildings or other structures along the System Route, Recipient shall make known such details, in writing, 
to Provider and Provider will then have the option to agree to such connections.  Should Provider agree, 
Provider will cooperate with Recipient to the extent necessary to enable Recipient to acquire rights to connect 
to the Licensed Fiber(s) via available Rights of Way and Provider will place connecting facilities on the Rights 
of Way between the Licensed Fiber(s) and such adjoining properties, subject to (i) the ability to do so pursuant 
to the Underlying Rights and (ii) Recipient’s agreement to pay any incremental increase in Costs arising from 
or otherwise due to Recipient’s proposed use thereof.  Such additional connections activity shall be at 
Recipient's sole cost and expense (including Costs incurred by Provider in providing oversight of any 
contractors excavating on the Rights of Way or near the Cable to make such connection).  Each connection to 
the Licensed Fiber(s) requiring a Cable to be connected will be performed by Provider at Recipient’s sole 
expense.  In order to schedule a connection of this type, Recipient shall contact Provider to undertake the work 
at least fourteen (14) days in advance of the date the connection is requested to be completed. Such work will 
be at times mutually agreed to by the parties or as otherwise agreed to in writing for specific projects.  
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

(b) If Recipient desires to construct fiber to connect to the Licensed Fiber(s) and Provider has agreed to 
such connection in writing and subject to (i) restrictions affecting the same as mandated by the Underlying 
Rights and Provider’s advance written approval thereof, not to be unreasonably withheld, Provider will allow 
Recipient or Recipient’s agent provided they meet Provider’s reasonable contractor qualification standards to 
perform such construction, provided, however, that an agent of Provider is present during such construction 
(and Recipient pays for the cost of such Provider agent overseeing such construction on the Rights of Way or 
near the Cable) and that agent shall have the absolute ability to direct the activities of that contractor when 
performing construction activities on the Underlying Rights or in areas adjacent to the facilities of Provider. 
 

ARTICLE 5.  CONSIDERATION 

5.1 License Fee.   The consideration paid by Recipient to Provider for the grant of the License to the 
Licensed Fiber(s) is set forth in Fiber Attachment. 
 
5.2 Late Payments.  Past due amounts bear interest at a rate of one and one half percent (1.5%) per month beginning 
from the date first due until paid in full.  A past due payment shall be (i) any payment received after the period 
specified herein for such payment (unless otherwise agreed in a specific Fiber Attachment, payments due 
hereunder shall be due forty-five (45) days from the date of the invoice) , and/or (ii) any payment of disputed 
amounts that is received more than forty—five days after the date such payment is determined to have been due 
in a final resolution of such dispute in accordance with Article 11 hereof.  
 

ARTICLE 6.   WARRANTIES, RISK ALLOCATION, INDEMNIFICATION  

AND REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 Disclaimer of Warranties.  Except as may be otherwise provided herein, Provider disclaims any and all 
warranties, express or implied, as to the use or condition of the Licensed Fiber(s) or any other matter hereunder, 
including without limitation warranties of merchantability, workmanship, quality or fitness for a particular purpose 
and Recipient agrees to look solely to the manufacturer of all materials and equipment subject to the grant of any 
license or other rights to Recipient hereunder for any recovery for Claims of Recipient relating to such materials 
and equipment.  Provider shall provide reasonable assistance to Recipient in good faith in the event a warranty 
claim arises with the manufacturer of the materials or equipment.    
 
6.2 Warranty Acknowledgment.  By executing this Agreement, Recipient acknowledges that, except as may 
be otherwise provided herein, Provider has made no warranty or representation with respect to the Licensed 
Fiber(s) and Recipient agrees to assume all risk of conducting Recipient’s activities using the Licensed Fiber(s) or 
associated services.   
 
6.3  Third Party Warranties.  In the event any maintenance or repairs to facilities provided to Recipient are 
required as a result of a breach of any warranty made by any third party manufacturers, contractors or vendors 
and such breach of a warranty had a material adverse affect on Recipient’s use of the Licensed Fiber(s), Provider 
shall share with Recipient on an equitable basis any recovery from any such manufacturers, contractors or 
vendors should Provider elect to pursue the same in its reasonable discretion. 
 
6.4 Insurance.  City shall maintain the insurance coverage as provided in the insurance coverage 
document provided as an Exhibit A to this Agreement. 
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

6.5 Provider’s Indemnity.  Provider shall indemnify and hold harmless each of Recipient, any corporation, 
partnership, limited liability company or other legal entity affiliated with Recipient and any stockholder, partner, 
member, director, officer, employee or agent of any of them, in his, her or its capacity as such, from and against all 
Claims brought by third parties which any such Indemnified Party (defined below) is required to pay or to assume 
to the full extent that such have resulted from Provider’s breach of any duty or obligation imposed by the provisions 
of this Agreement or applicable by law, including statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, decrees, judgments and 
the law of torts (including without limitation gross negligence, strict liability, or willful misconduct). 
 
6.6 Recipient’s Indemnity.  Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless each of Provider, any corporation, 
partnership, limited liability company or other legal entity affiliated with Provider and any stockholder, partner, 
member, director, officer, employee or agent of any of them, in his, her or its capacity as such, from and against all 
Claims brought by third parties which any such Indemnified Party (defined below) is required to pay or to assume 
to the full extent that such have resulted from (i) Recipient’s breach of any duty or obligation imposed by the 
provisions of this Agreement or by the provisions of applicable law, including without limitation that of applicable 
statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, decrees, judgments, the law of torts (including without limitation gross 
negligence, strict liability, or willful misconduct) or (ii) the violation, misappropriation, or infringement of/upon the 
intellectual property rights (including without limitation patent, copyright, and/or trademark rights) of any third party 
by Recipient or any Recipient downstream customer, licensee, or otherwise an end user of the Licensed Fiber(s) 
gaining access thereto or using capacity thereof through facilities controlled or operated by Recipient (with or 
without Recipient’s authorization to the extent allowed by applicable law). 
 
6.7 Notice and Defense of Third-Party Actions.  Each Person entitled to indemnification under this Article 6 
(an “Indemnified Party”) shall give prompt written notice to each Person that is obligated to provide such 
indemnification (an “Indemnifying Party”) of the commencement or assertion of any Claim by a third party 
(collectively, a “third-party action”) in respect of which an Indemnified Party will seek indemnification hereunder, 
which notice shall state, to the extent known to the Indemnified Party, the basis on which the claim for 
indemnification is made, the facts giving rise to or the alleged basis of the third-party action, and the amount (which 
may be estimated) of liability asserted by reason of the Claim; such notice shall also include a copy of the 
document (if any) by or in which the third-party action is commenced or asserted.  Any failure so to notify the 
Indemnifying Party shall not relieve it from any obligation that it may have to the Indemnified Party under this 
Article 6 unless the failure to give such notice materially and adversely prejudices the Indemnifying Party and then 
only to the extent of such prejudice.  The Indemnifying Party shall have the right to assume control of the defense 
of or settle or otherwise dispose of such third-party action on such terms as the Indemnifying Party deems 
appropriate; provided, however, that: 
 
(a) The Indemnified Party shall be entitled, at its own expense, and without unreasonable interference 
with the actions of the Indemnifying Party, to participate in the defense of third-party actions; 
 
(b) The Indemnifying Party shall obtain the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party before entering 
into any settlement or compromise requiring the admission or any acknowledgment of facts or any liability in 
respect thereof or the affirmative obligation of the Indemnified Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld; 
 
(c) No Indemnifying Party shall consent to the entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement that does 
not include as an unconditional term thereof the giving by each claimant or plaintiff to each Indemnified Party 
of a release from all liability in respect of such third-party action; and 
 
(d) The Indemnifying Party shall not be entitled to control (but shall be entitled to participate at its own 
expense in the defense of) and the Indemnified Party shall be entitled to have sole control over, the defense or 
settlement, compromise, admission or other acknowledgment of any third-party action (i) as to which the 
Indemnifying Party fails to assume the defense within a reasonable length of time or (ii) to the extent the third-
party action seeks an order, injunction or other equitable relief against the Indemnified Party which, if 
successful, would have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, operations or properties 
of the Indemnified Party; provided, however, that the Indemnified Party shall make no settlement or 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

compromise requiring the admission or other acknowledgment which would give rise to liability on the part of 
the Indemnifying Party or affirmative obligation of the Indemnified Party without the prior written consent of the 
Indemnifying Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
6.8 Cooperation.  The Parties and their Affiliates shall cooperate with each other in the defense of any third-
party action that is the subject of this Article 6 and shall furnish each other all such further information that they 
have the right and power to furnish as may reasonably be necessary to defend such third-party action. 

 
6.9 Representations and Warranties.  In addition to any other representations and warranties contained in 
this Agreement, each Party hereto represents and warrants to the other that: 
 
(a) It has the full right and authority to enter into, execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement; 
 
(b) It has taken all requisite corporate or company action to approve the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement; 
 
(c) This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against such party in 
accordance with its terms; and 
 
(d) Its execution of and performance under this Agreement shall not violate any applicable existing 
regulations, rules, statutes, or court orders of any local, state or federal government agency, court, or body. 

ARTICLE 7.   DELAYS AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

7.1 Outage Liability; Restoration Delays.  Under no circumstances shall either Provider or Recipient ever 
be liable for any delay in restoring any service or Licensed Fiber(s) or any operational aspect of the System 
containing such Licensed Fiber(s) which has been subjected to an outage, interference or interruption, unless and 
to the limited extent such outage, interference or interruption arises out of the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of Provider or Recipient, or unless and to the limited extent Provider's delay in restoration arises out of 
its gross negligence or willful misconduct.   
 
7.2 Limitation of Liability.    No claims for damages with respect to this Agreement may be made more than 
two (2) years after the date that the event giving rise to such claim is known or reasonably should have been 
known to the person or entity making such claim; and no claim for indemnity under the provisions of Section 6 
hereof may be made more than two (2) years after the first notice of any claim received by the Party claiming 
under such indemnity provision. 
 
(a) NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR THE OTHER PARTY’S END-USERS FOR 
ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES 
(INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST BUSINESS, REVENUE, PROFITS, OR GOODWILL) ARISING 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES HEREUNDER 
(INCLUDING ANY SERVICE IMPLEMENTATION DELAYS AND/OR FAILURES), UNDER ANY THEORY OF 
TORT, CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT LIABILITY OR NEGLIGENCE, EVEN IF THE PARTY HAS BEEN 
ADVISED, KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 
 
(b) THE FOREGOING LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION AND CLAIMS SUFFERED 
BY THE OTHER, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF 
WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, MISREPRESENTATION AND OTHER TORTS, BUT 
SHALL NOT APPLY WITH RESPECT TO:  (a) breaches of confidentiality, (b) indemnification obligations set 
forth in this Agreement, or (c) injury or death to an individual, or (d) willful misconduct. 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

ARTICLE 8.  CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1 Confidential Information.  “Confidential Information” shall mean any and all information provided by one 
Party to this Agreement to the other Party for use in connection with the investigation, negotiation or performance 
of this Agreement.  “Confidential Information” excludes any information that (i) the subject Party notifies the 
recipient in writing is not confidential, (ii) is or becomes available to the recipient on a non-confidential basis from a 
source other than the subject Party, any Person acting on behalf of the subject Party, or any Person who has 
confidentiality obligations (whether to the subject Party or otherwise) provided that such disclosure was not itself a 
breach of a confidentiality obligation running to the subject Party, (iii) is or becomes generally available to the 
public other than as a result of a disclosure by the recipient or any Person to whom such recipient disclosed the 
information, or (iv) is required to be disclosed by law, subject to the provisions of Section 8.3 hereof.  Confidential 
Information may take the form of documentation, drawings, specifications, software, technical or engineering data, 
business information, the identity of Parties to a possible business transaction, the status and existence of 
discussions or negotiations among the Parties, the terms and conditions of any business transaction, plans and 
proposals relating thereto, and information concerning a Party's financial condition, results of operations, financial 
forecasts and projections, capital projects, research and development, design plans, management plans, business 
plans, marketing plans, and feasibility plans, markets, business, products, services, contracts, customers, 
suppliers, trade secrets, operating procedures, material and labor costs, sources and requirements, and 
technological means, methods and processes, as well as every study, report, analysis, notation, summary, 
synopsis, compilation and other document (collectively, “Work Product”) containing, analyzing or otherwise 
reflecting any Confidential Information described above, and may be communicated orally, in writing, by electronic 
or magnetic media, by visual observation, or by other means.   

8.2 Confidentiality.  Each Party agrees to provide to the other Party such information (including Confidential 
Information) as shall be necessary to permit the performance of their respective obligations hereunder provided 
that in the event a Party is not at liberty to disclose such necessary information due to a confidentiality obligation 
running to a third party, the party to whom disclosure is not permitted but is otherwise necessary to permit the 
performance of its respective obligations hereunder, shall have the right to terminate the affected fibers in Fiber 
Attachment.   Except as otherwise provided in Section 8.3, neither Party hereto will, without the prior written 
consent of the Party providing such Confidential Information, (i) use any portion of such Confidential Information for 
any purpose other than performance pursuant to this Agreement, or (ii) disclose any portion of such Confidential 
Information to any persons or entities other than the Affiliates of such Party and to the officers, employees and 
contractors of such Party who reasonably need to have access to such Confidential Information for purposes of 
performance under this Agreement and have agreed to comply with confidentiality terms no less stringent that 
those set forth in this Agreement in order to preserve the disclosing party’s expectation of confidentiality 
hereunder.  Each recipient Party agrees to guard Confidential Information utilizing the same degree of care utilized 
by such recipient Party in protecting its own Confidential Information, but in any event not less than a reasonable 
degree of care.  The obligations of a recipient Party with respect to Confidential Information shall remain in effect 
during and after the Term of this Agreement. 
 
8.3 Permitted Use.  Confidential Information provided by Provider may be used by Recipient in connection 
with Recipient's use of the Licensed Fiber(s).  If the receiving Party is compelled to disclose Confidential 
Information through lawful process in judicial or administrative proceedings or otherwise by law (other than under 
any securities laws and events covered by Section 8.5), the receiving Party shall, if possible, give written notice 
within a reasonable period of time to permit the disclosing Party the opportunity to seek suitable protective 
arrangements before the Confidential Information is disclosed, and the receiving Party shall cooperate fully in all 
reasonable respects with the disclosing Party's efforts to obtain such protective arrangements; provided, however, 
that if the receiving Party would otherwise be required to disclose Confidential Information under any securities 
law, the receiving Party shall use its reasonable efforts to take such steps as are available under such law (such 
as by providing a summary or synopsis) to avoid disclosure of such Confidential Information. 
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

8.4 Return or Destruction.  Confidential Information shall remain the property of the disclosing Party and 
shall, upon written request, if written or in other tangible form, including any copies thereof, be promptly returned to 
the disclosing Party or, in the case of the recipient's Work Product, be promptly destroyed at the recipient's option, 
such destruction to be promptly certified in writing to the disclosing Party. 
 
8.5 Required Disclosures.  The provisions of this Article 8 shall not apply to reasonably necessary 
disclosures in or in connection with filings under any public information laws/acts, securities laws, regulatory filings 
or proceedings, financial disclosures which in the good faith judgment of the disclosing Party are required by law 
(including, but not limited to State of Texas Public Information Act), disclosures required by court or tribunal or 
competent jurisdiction, or disclosures that may be reasonably necessary in connection with the performance or 
enforcement of this Agreement or any of the obligations hereof; provided, however, that if the receiving Party 
would otherwise be required to refer to or describe any aspect of this Agreement in any of the preceding 
circumstances, the receiving Party shall use its reasonable efforts to take such steps as are available under such 
circumstances (such as by providing a summary or synopsis) to avoid disclosure of the financial terms and 
conditions of this Agreement or in the case of the pending disclosures arising from public information laws/acts, 
Recipient shall give Provider notice of any open records request and Provider would be allowed to seek any 
redactions of the information with the applicable governing body.  Notwithstanding any provisions of this 
Agreement to the contrary, either Party may disclose the terms and conditions of this Agreement in the course of a 
due diligence review performed in connection with prospective debt financing or equity investment by, or a sale to, 
a third Party, so long as the Persons conducting such due diligence review have agreed to maintain the 
confidentiality of such disclosure and not to use such disclosure for any purpose other than such due diligence 
review. 
 

ARTICLE 9.  PUBLICITY AND ADVERTISING 

Neither Party hereto shall use any advertising, sales promotions, or other publicity materials that use the other 
Party's logo, trademarks, or service marks.  Each Party shall have the right to review and approve any publicity 
materials, press releases or other public statements (other than filings required under the securities laws) by 
the other Party that discloses its identity.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 8.4 or otherwise 
agreed, neither Party shall release the text of this Agreement nor any material portion thereof (other than in a 
form modified to remove all references to the identity of the other Party) to any Person other than the Parties 
hereto for any purpose. 

ARTICLE 10.   FORCE MAJEURE 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the performance of the obligations set forth in this 
Agreement, other than obligations to pay money (except as provided below), shall be suspended or excused in 
the event and only to the extent that such performance is prevented by an event of Force Majeure or its 
adverse effects.  If the performance of a Party's obligations under this Agreement is suspended or excused by 
an event of Force Majeure or its adverse effects, such Party shall use commercially reasonable diligence to 
cause such event or effects to cease or be reduced.  “Force Majeure” shall mean the occurrence or 
nonoccurrence of any act or event beyond the reasonable control of the Party relying thereon as justification 
for not performing an obligation or complying with any condition required of such Party pursuant to this 
Agreement.   
 
The Party whose obligations are suspended or excused as described above shall, as soon as practical, give 
written notice to the other Party specifying the nature and anticipated duration of the Force Majeure event and 
outlining its recover plan, if any. To the extent the Licensed Fiber(s) are unavailable for use due to a Force 
Majeure event and Provider’s obligations are suspended in accordance herewith, then Recipient’s obligation to 
pay for the Licensed Fiber(s) shall be suspended, on a pro-rata basis, during such time Provider’s obligations 
are also suspended. Either Party may terminate the affected fibers in Fiber Attachment if a Force Majeure 
event continues for more than one hundred eighty (180) days. In the event of such termination, Provider will 
reimburse Recipient a pro-rata amount of any pre-paid recurring fees for the services not received for the 
unexpired Term of the respective fibers in Fiber Attachment. 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

ARTICLE 11.   DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

11.1 Submission to Dispute Committee.  Each Party to this Agreement agrees to use good faith efforts to 
negotiate and resolve any controversy or claim between the Parties hereto arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or any breach thereof (hereinafter referred to as a “Dispute”).  If a Dispute cannot be resolved through 
such efforts, then either Party may seek resolution of the Dispute by submitting such Dispute to a “Dispute 
Committee”, consisting of one designee of each Party, by a written submission delivered to the other Party.  The 
Dispute Committee shall consider the Dispute within the thirty (30) day period following the date of such 
submission. 
 
11.2 Other Remedies.  It is not the intention of the Parties that relief sought through preliminary injunctions, 
temporary restraining orders or other similar temporary procedures in a court of competent jurisdiction to obtain 
interim relief when deemed necessary by such court to preserve the status quo or prevent irreparable injury 
pending resolution, shall be in lieu of, or cause substantial delay to, any arbitration proceeding to which the parties 
may agree as a means of resolving any dispute. 
 

ARTICLE 12.  TAXES 

12.1  Payment of Impositions. To the extent that Recipient holds/enjoys a license to the Licensed Fiber(s) 
hereunder, Recipient shall promptly reimburse Provider for its proportionate share of any and all Impositions 
imposed upon or with respect to the System Route during such periods Recipient has use of the Licensed Fiber(s). 
Recipient’s share of such Imposition shall be one hundred percent (100%) in the event such Imposition results 
solely from Recipients use of or activities with respect to the Licensed Fiber(s).  Otherwise, Recipient's 
proportionate share of such Imposition shall be determined to the extent possible, based upon the manner and 
methodology used by the particular person or authority imposing such Impositions (e.g., on the cost of the relative 
property interests, historic or projected revenue derived therefrom, any combination thereof or otherwise).  
However, if the person or authority imposing such Imposition uses projected revenue or gross receipts, then 
Recipient's proportionate share shall be based on the relative number of Licensed Fiber(s) in the affected portion 
of the System Route compared to the total number of fibers in the affected portion of the System Route during the 
relevant period of use by Recipient.  If Provider's assessed value, for property tax purposes, is based on its entire 
operation in any state (i.e., central assessment), Provider and Recipient shall work together in good faith to 
allocate a proper portion of said assessment to the System and Recipient's interest in the System Route.  Provider 
shall provide Recipient with reasonable supporting documentation for Impositions for which Provider seeks 
reimbursement.  The Parties agree that in the event Recipient submits to Provider a tax exemption certificate, such 
exempt taxes will not be applicable. The Parties agree that in the event Recipient submits to Provider a tax 
exemption certificate, such exempt taxes shall not be applicable. 
 
12.2  Contest of Impositions. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, Provider shall have the 
right to contest any Imposition to the full extent that such contest does not materially and adversely affect 
Recipient's ability to utilize any License or right granted hereunder and the associated Licensed Fiber(s).  The 
out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by Provider in any such 
contest shall be shared by Provider and Recipient in the same proportion as that by which the Parties shared 
in any such Imposition as it was originally assessed, provided that Recipient does not elect to forgo the 
benefits of any such Imposition contest prior to its commencement of which Provider must give thirty (30) days 
prior notice, in which case Recipient shall not be obligated to share any of the costs thereof but shall not be 
entitled to any share of the relief obtained.  In the event of any refunds or credits resulting from a contest 
brought by Provider, which Recipient did not elect to forgo prior to commencement of such contest, all such 
expenses shall first be paid from such refund or credit, after which such credit or refund shall be divided 
between Provider and Recipient in the same proportion as the Impositions are to be borne by Provider and 
Recipient hereunder.  Further, where Provider does not contest an Imposition, Recipient shall have the right, 
after notice to Provider, to contest such Imposition as long as such contest does not materially and adversely 
affect the title, property or rights to the System, the Licensed Fiber(s) and/or otherwise the communications 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

business interests of Provider.  The out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) 
incurred by Recipient and any refund or credit Imposition in any such contest shall not be shared by Provider. 
  
12.3 Net Income Impositions.   Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article 12, Provider shall have 
complete authority over and discretion to control (including the authority to dismiss or not pursue) any contests 
relating to Impositions based upon the computation of Provider's taxable income under the Federal Internal 
Revenue Code or state income or franchise tax laws (hereinafter “Net Income Based Impositions”).  Provider shall 
have no obligation to disclose to Recipient its income or franchise tax returns and records.  Recipient shall have no 
liability for any Net Income Based Impositions. 
 
12. 4 Receipts Impositions.  Following the Acceptance Date, Provider and Recipient, respectively, shall be 
separately responsible for any and all Impositions (i) expressly or implicitly imposed upon, based upon, or 
otherwise measured by the gross receipts, gross income, net receipts or net income received by or accrued to 
such Party due to its respective interest or use of the System Route and/or any facility to which rights are granted 
hereunder, or (ii) which have been separately assessed or imposed upon the respective interest of use by such 
third party on or with respect to the System Route and/or any Provided Facility.  If the Licensed Fiber(s) are the 
only facilities located in the Cable from the point where the Cable leaves the System right-of-way to a Recipient 
point of interconnection, Recipient shall be solely responsible for any and all Impositions imposed on or Costs 
incurred with respect to such portion of the System Route.  
 

ARTICLE 13.   TERMINATION AND DEFAULT 

13.1 Termination.   This Agreement with respect to the fibers in a Fiber Attachment shall automatically 
terminate at the end of the Term of unless extended by the mutual consent of the parties via an amendment to this 
Agreement and executed by the Parties. The Parties agree to negotiate in good-faith in an attempt to execute 
a new agreement for a lease of the fibers hereunder at least sixty (60) days in advance of the end of the 
Term. In the event the Parties are unable to reach a new consent, this Agreement will terminate 
accordingly and upon such termination, Provider shall owe Recipient no additional duties or consideration with 
respect to the respective Licensed Fiber(s) or Recipient Building Spaces including no longer having the obligation 
to maintain the Underlying Rights to provide the right of Recipient to hold a License to the Licensed Fiber(s) or use 
or maintain the Licensed Fiber(s), and to the extent that Provider has title to the Licensed Fiber(s) and Recipient 
continues to use the Licensed Fiber(s) after the termination of this Agreement, Recipient shall indemnify, defend 
and hold Provider harmless from and against all Claims by third parties arising from or related to such continued 
use. 
 
13.2 Default.    A Party shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of an event in which such 
Party has failed to comply with any of its obligations as set forth in this Agreement (each an Event of Default; see 
Section 13.2 (b) below).   
 
(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, other than an Event of Default based upon non-payment of 
any undisputed amounts owed under this Agreement, the defaulting Party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt 
of a notice of the Event of Default to cure the Event of Default (unless the Event of Default is waived in writing by 
the non-defaulting party within the thirty (30) day period).  However, in such cases where an Event of Default 
cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period, if the defaulting Party shall proceed promptly to cure 
the same and prosecute such curing with due diligence, the time for curing such Event of Default (except for 
Events of Default regarding making payments hereunder and Insolvency Defaults, as defined below) shall be 
extended for such period of time as may be necessary to complete such curing (unless the same is not or cannot 
be cured within one hundred twenty (120) days in which case the non-defaulting party shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without further liability at the expiration of such 120-period).  

(b) Events of Default shall include, but not be limited to, the making by a Party of a general assignment for the 
benefit of its creditors, the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or the filing of a petition in bankruptcy or other 
insolvency protection against a Party which is not dismissed within ninety (90) days thereafter, or the filing by a 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

Party of any petition or answer seeking, consenting to, or acquiescing in reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, 
composition, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief (collectively, an “Insolvency Default”).   

(c) Any Event of Default by a Party may be waived under the terms of this Agreement at the other Party’s sole 
option.  Upon the failure by a Party to timely cure any such Event of Default after written notice thereof, the other 
Party may (i) take such action as it determines, in its sole discretion, to be necessary to correct the Event of 
Default (except that neither Party shall perform any work on the other Party’s fiber/network/system without the 
other Party’s explicit consent), (ii) terminate this Agreement, and (iii) pursue any legal remedies it may have under 
applicable law or principles of equity relating to such Event of Default. When a party fails to pay any undisputed 
amounts owed hereunder by their due date, an Event of Default shall occur if the party owing such amount fails to 
cure same within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice thereof.   

ARTICLE 14.   GENERAL PROVISIONS 

14.1 Amendments.  This Agreement shall not be amended, altered or modified except by an instrument in 
writing duly executed by both Parties. 
 
14.2 Assignment. Neither Party may assign its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent 
of the other Party; provided however, that any Party may assign its rights or obligations hereunder pursuant to a 
merger or sale of all or substantially all of its assets or its underlying System to an Affiliate, in each said instance 
upon providing written notice to, but without the consent of, the other Party, and the use restrictions of Section 4.3 
and all other terms herein shall apply to any assignee.   
 
14.3 Limitation of Benefits.  It is the explicit intention of the Parties hereto that no Person other than the 
Parties hereto is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement against any 
Party hereto, and that covenants, undertakings, and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be enforceable 
only by the Parties hereto or their respective successors or permitted assigns. 
 
14.4 Notices.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices, demands, requests, approvals or other 
communications which may be or are required to be given, served or sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or delivered 
by nationally recognized overnight courier addressed as follows: 
 
If to Recipient:   

 
City of Watsonville  
Attn: City Clerk 
275 Main Street, Suite 400 
Watsonville CA. 95076 
 

with a copy to: 
    
City of Watsonville  
Attn: IT Manager  
250 Main St. 
Watsonville CA. 95076 
 
City of Watsonville  
Attn: Deputy City Manager  
275 Main Street, Suite 400 
Watsonville CA. 95076 
 
 

 
  



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

If to Provider:  Charter Business 
   Attn: Sales Manager 
   8120 Camino Arroyo 
   Gilroy CA  953020  
  
 
with copies to:  Charter Communications 
   Attn: Contracts Manager – CB Corp. 
   12405 Powerscourt Drive 
   St. Louis, MO 63131 
   Phone: 314-288-3470 
 

Charter Communications 
Attn: Legal Department - Operations 
12405 Powerscourt Drive 
St. Louis, MO  63131 
Phone: 314-543-2415 
 

Each Party may designate by notice in writing a new address to which any notice, demand, request, report, 
approval or communication may thereafter be so given, served or sent.  Each notice, demand, request, report, 
approval or communication which shall be mailed or delivered in the manner described above, shall be 
deemed sufficiently given, served, sent or received for all purposes at such time as it is delivered to the 
addressee (with the return receipt or the delivery receipt being deemed conclusive evidence of such delivery) 
or at such time as delivery is refused by the addressee upon presentation. 
 
14.5 Severability.  If any part of any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement, document or writing 
given pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable under 
applicable law, said part shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or enforceability only, without in any way 
affecting the remaining parts of said provision or the remaining provisions of said agreement; provided, however, 
that if any such ineffectiveness or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement, in the good faith judgment of 
either Party, renders the benefits to such Party of this Agreement as a whole uneconomical in light of the 
obligations of such Party under this Agreement as a whole, then Provider and Recipient shall negotiate in good 
faith in an effort to restore insofar as possible the economic benefits of the transaction to the Parties. 
 
14.6 Independent Contractors.  In all matters pertaining to this Agreement, the relationship of Provider and 
Recipient shall be that of independent contractors, and neither Provider nor Recipient shall make any 
representations or warranties that their relationship is other than that of independent contractors.  This Agreement 
is not intended to create nor shall it be construed to create any partnership, joint venture, employment or agency 
relationship between Provider and Recipient; and no Party hereto shall be liable for the payment or performance of 
any debts, obligations, or liabilities of the other Party, unless expressly assumed in writing herein or otherwise.  
Each Party retains full control over the employment, direction, compensation and discharges of its employees, and 
will be solely responsible for all compensation of such employees, including social security, tax withholding and 
worker's compensation responsibilities. 
 
14.7 Labor Relations. Each Party hereto shall be responsible for labor relations with its own employees.  Each 
Party agrees to notify the other immediately whenever it has knowledge that a labor dispute concerning its 
employees or its Affiliates' employees is delaying or threatens to delay timely performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 
 
14.8 Exercise of Rights.  No failure or delay on the part of either Party hereto in exercising any right, power or 
privilege hereunder and no course of dealing between the Parties shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any 
single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or 
the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. 
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL
    

 

14.9 Additional Actions and Documents.  Each of the Parties hereto hereby agrees to take or cause to be 
taken such further actions, to execute, acknowledge, deliver and file or cause to be executed, acknowledged, 
delivered and filed such further documents and instruments, and to use its commercially reasonable efforts to 
obtain such consents, as may be necessary or as may be reasonably requested in order to fully effectuate the 
purposes, terms and conditions of this Agreement, whether at or after the execution of this Agreement. 
 
14.10 Survival.  The obligations of the Parties under Article 6 (Warranties, Risk Allocation And Indemnification), 
Article 7 (Delays and Limitation of Liability), Article 8 (Confidentiality), Article 9 (Publicity and Advertising), Article 
11 (Dispute Resolution), Article 12 (Taxes), Section 14.5 (Severability), and Section 14.13 (Governing Law) shall 
survive any termination of this Agreement. 
 
14.11 Headings.  Article headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only, 
shall not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement for any purpose, and shall not in any way define or affect the 
meaning, construction or scope of any of the provisions hereof. 
 
14.12 Incorporation of Exhibits.  The Exhibits referenced in and attached to this Agreement shall be deemed 
an integral part hereof to the same extent as if written at length herein. 
 
14.13 Governing Law.    This Agreement and each of its provisions shall be governed by and construed and 
interpreted according to the substantive laws of the State of Texas without regard to its conflicts of law or choice of 
law provisions. 
 
14.14 Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
14.15 Entire Agreement.   This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to 
the transaction contemplated herein, and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements, commitments or 
understandings with respect to the matters provided for herein. 
 
14.16 Performance.  Except as specifically set forth herein, for the purpose of this Agreement, the normal 
standards of performance within the communications industry in the relevant market shall be the measure of 
whether a Party’s performance is reasonable and timely. 
 
14.17 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The Parties agree that the terms of this Agreement and the Parties’ 
respective performance of obligations hereunder are not intended to benefit any person or entity not a party to 
this Agreement, that the consideration provided by each under this Agreement only runs to the respective 
Parties hereto, and that no person or entity not a Party to this Agreement shall have any rights hereunder nor 
the right to require the performance hereunder by either of the respective Parties hereto. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first 
above written. 
 
Provider      Recipient 
  
 
By: CCO SoCal I, LLC   By:  City of Watsonville 
By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager   
 
              
Name:  Mark E. Brown      Name: Carlos J. Palacios 
Title: Vice President      Title: City Manager 
 
Date:        Date:       



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL   

 

FIBER ATTACHMENT   

This Fiber Attachment represents those Licensed Fibers which Provider has granted specific license for 
use to Recipient and the monthly fees to be paid by Recipient to Provider in consideration of such license. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Both parties agree to use best efforts and/or negotiate in good faith to extend the term based on 
mutual agreement on pricing. 
Customer will have physical access, subject to the terms of the Agreement and any Exhibits 
thereto, to the Licensed Fiber at each of the following addresses: 
Facility Name   Address Zip
Watsonville Fire Station #2   370 Airport Blvd  95019
Freedom Branch Library   2021 Freedom Blvd  95019
Wastewater Plant   500 Clearwater Ln  95076
Fowle  Reservoir   1509 Freedom Blvd  95019
Ramsay Park Family Center   1301 Main St  95076
Vets Hall   215 East Beach St  95076
Watsonville High School, Video 
Academy  (Room 126)  250 East Beach St.   95076
Watsonville Civic Plaza, City 
Council Chambers r   275 Main Street.   95076

 
 
 
Consideration Paid for Fiber: 
Check one: 

X  
 Payment Amount: 0  
 

Installation: $0.00 
 

  Payment Schedule: 0  
 

System 
Route 
Length 
(miles) 

Delivery 
Date 

License 
Term (if 

applicable) 

License Term Renewals (if 
applicable) 

14.5 Immediate  This contact is valid until  
7-1-2014  



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL    

 

 
 
 
Provider      Recipient 
  
By: CCO SoCal I,  LLC   By:  City of Watsonville 
By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager   
 
    
             
 
Name:  Mark E. Brown     Name:  Carlos J. Palacios   
  
Title:  Vice President     Title:  City Manager    
 
Date:        Date:       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL    

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

INSURANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 



mario.maldonado
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



mario.maldonado
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL    

 

EXHIBIT B.   CONSTRUCTION & FIBER SPECIFICATIONS 

A.    CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS [RESERVED] 
 
B.    FIBER SPECIFICATIONS 
 
OPTICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
Attenuation 
 
Uncabled Fiber Attenuation Cells 
 
Wavelength (nm) 

Attenuation Cells (dB/km) 
Premium Standard 

1310 <0.35 <0.40 
1550 <0.25 ≤0.30 
  
    
Attenuation vs. Wavelength 
Range 
(nm) 

Ref. λ 
(nm) 

Max Increase 
α (dB/km) 

1285 - 1330 1310 0.05 
1525 – 1575 1550 0.05 
 
        
Attenuation With Bending 
Mandrel 
Diameter 
(mm) 

Number 
of Turns 

Wavelength 
(nm) 

Induced 
Attenuation (dB) 

32 1 1550 < 0.50 
75 100 1310 < 0.05 
75 100 1550 < 0.10 
  
 
Cable Cutoff Wavelength (λccf)   •  Mode-Field Diameter 
        λccf < 1260 nm                                                               9.30 +/- 0.50 μm at 1310 nm 
                                                                                              10.50 +/- 1.00 μm at 1550 nm 
 
Dispersion 
          Zero Dispersion Wavelength (λο):  1301.5 nm ≤ λο ≤ 1321.5 nm 
          Zero Dispersion Slope (Sο):  ≤ 0.092 ps/(nm² • km) 
          Fiber Polarization Mode Dispersion Coefficient (PMD): ≤ 0.5 ps/√ km 
 
 
 
 
                                                       Dispersion Calculation
       SO                        λ0

4

Dispersion = D (λ):  ≈          4                 λ3     ps/(nm * km), for 1200 nm ≤ λ ≤ 1600 nm   
 
      (λ = Operating Wavelength) 
 
 

 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIFICATION 

λ  

Point Discontinuity 

No point discontinuity greater 
than 
0.10 dB at either 1310 nm or 
1550 nm. 

The attenuation in a given 
wavelength range does not 

exceed the attenuation of the 
reference wavelength λ by more 

than the value α 

The induced attenuation due 
to fiber wrapped around a 

mandrel of a specified 
diameter. 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL    

 

     
        
 
 
Environmental Test Condition 
 

Induced 
Attenuation (dB/km) 
1310 nm 1550 nm 

Temperature Dependence 
-60o  C to +85o C* 

≤0.05 ≤0.05 

Temperature-Humidity Cycling 
10o C to +85oC*, up to 98% 
RH 

 
≤0.05 

 
≤0.05 
 

Water Immersion, 23oC  ≤0.05 ≤0.05 
Heat Aging, 85oC ≤0.05 ≤0.05 
       
*reference temperature = +23oC     
 
DIMENSIONAL SPECIFICATIONS 
Standard Length (km/reel): 2.2 – 25.2 
*longer spliced lengths available at a premium. 
 
  
Glass Geometry    Coating Geometry 
Fiber Curl: ≥  4.0 m radius of curvature       Coating Diameter:  245 ± 10 µm 
Cladding Diameter: 125.0 ± 1.0 µm       Coating –Cladding Concentricity < 12 µm 
Core-Clad Concentricity: ≤ 0.6 µm 
Cladding Non-Circularity: ≤ 1.0% 
 
Defined as:      [             Min. Cladding Diameter     ]   x 100 
                Max. Cladding Diameter 
 
 
MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
  
Proof Test: 
The entire length of fiber is subjected to a tensile proof stress ≥ 100 kpsi (0.7 GN/m2)*. 
  

1 - 

Operating Temperature 
Range 
-60o C to +85o C 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL   

  

 

EXHIBIT C.   OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  

I. PREVENTATIVE, DEMAND AND EMERGENCY MAINTENANCE 
 
A. Preventative Maintenance:  Preventative Maintenance refers to upgrades, and or routine 

maintenance or necessary alteration/repair of hardware or software or upgrades to increase capacity.  
Preventative Maintenance may temporarily degrade the quality of the service, including possible outages.  
Preventative Maintenance shall be undertaken only between the hours of 01:00:00 and 05:00:00 Local 
Time.  The Party performing such maintenance shall provide at least three (3) days prior notice to the 
other Party of Preventative Maintenance. 

 
Preventative Maintenance performed by Provider shall commence with respect to the Licensed Fiber(s) 
upon the commencement of the grant of License hereunder.  Preventative Maintenance performed by 
Provider shall include the following activities: 

 
 (i) Patrol of System route on a regularly scheduled basis; (ii) Maintenance of a “Call-Before-You-

Dig” program and all required and related cable locates; (iii) Maintenance of sign posts along the System 
right-of-way with the number of the local “Call-Before-You-Dig” organization and the “800” number for the 
appropriate “Call-Before-You-Dig” program; and (iv) Assignment of maintenance technicians to locations 
along the route of the System at approximately 200-mile intervals dependent upon terrain and 
accessibility. 

 
 (ii) Recipient shall immediately report the need for Unscheduled Maintenance to Provider in 

accordance with procedures promulgated by Provider from time to time.  Provider will log the time of 
Recipient’s report, verify the problem and dispatch personnel immediately to take corrective action. 

 
B. Emergency Maintenance (Unscheduled Maintenance or Repair): Emergency 

Maintenance shall be performed by or under the direction of Provider in response to an alarm 
identification by Provider’s Network Operations Center (“NOC”), notification by Recipient or notification by 
any third party of any failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of a Recipient Fiber, or any event 
imminently likely to cause the failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of a Recipient Fiber. 
Work to address an Emergency Maintenance situation may degrade the quality of or cause outages.  
Provider may undertake Emergency Maintenance at any time deemed necessary but shall make 
commercially reasonable efforts to perform such maintenance within the hours identified for Preventative 
Maintenance if possible.  Provider shall provide notice of Emergency Maintenance to Recipient as soon 
as is commercially practicable under the circumstance but when reasonably possible; provide notice 
twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  Whenever prior notice is given, Recipient agrees to acknowledge 
notice of the emergency event in a reasonable period of time and in all events, Recipient will take 
necessary steps to notify key personnel internally in order for the Provider to correct or repair the affected 
area. 

 
C. Demand Maintenance: “Demand” maintenance is work necessary to restore service to one 

or more end-users of Provider and/or maintenance work required when a deficiency is found when 
performing Preventative Maintenance work.  Provider may undertake Demand Maintenance immediately.  
Provider shall provide notice of Demand Maintenance to Recipient as soon as is commercially practicable 
under the circumstances.   

  
D. Notification:  Provider shall provide Recipient with notice of Preventative Maintenance or as 

soon as possible in the case of Emergency or Demand Maintenance to the following by means of 
electronic mail notification and telephone: 

 
  Recipient City of Watsonville, Mark Lamoreaux, IT Manager, (831) 768-3431, 
mark.lamoreaux@cityofwatsonville.org  

 
 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL   

  

 

Recipient shall notify Provider of any failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of a Recipient 
Fiber, or any event imminently likely to cause the failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of a 
Recipient Fiber. 

 
Provider: 
Charter Business Network Operations Center (CB NOC):  
Fiber Support One Call  
Phone:   (866) 603-3199 
Email: CBNOC@chartercom.com   
 

 
Recipient shall have the right to be present, at its sole cost and expense, during the performance of 

any Maintenance so long as this requirement does not interfere with Provider’s ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement.  In the event that Maintenance is canceled or delayed for whatever 
reason as previously notified, Provider shall notify Recipient at Provider’s earliest opportunity, and will 
comply with the provisions of the previous sentence to reschedule any delayed activity. 

 
II. CHARTER BUSINESS NETWORK OPERATIONS CENTER. 
 Provider operates and maintains an operations center, Charter Business Network Operations 

Center (CB NOC), which is staffed twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Provider shall 
have a maintenance employee at the site requiring Emergency or Demand Maintenance activity within 
four (4) hours after the time Provider becomes aware of an event requiring Emergency or Demand 
Maintenance, unless delayed by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Provider.   

 
III. COOPERATION AND COORDINATION. 
 Recipient shall utilize the Charter Business Performance Center Escalation List, as updated from 

time to time, to report and seek immediate initial redress of exceptions noted in the performance of 
Provider in meeting maintenance service objectives.  The following is the initial Charter Business Network 
Operations Center Escalation List. 

 
Charter Business Network Operations Center Escalation List 
The purpose of escalations is to ensure that adequate resources are mobilized quickly, tracked 

appropriately and the issue is resolved in the shortest possible time. To that end, the Charter Business 
NOC performs internal and external escalations within Charter and provides this escalation list to our 
customers and service partners for the purpose of escalations within the CB NOC. 

  
Escalatio

n 
Level 

Charter Business NOC: 1-866-603-3199 

Name/Title/Email 

Contact Numbers

1st  Level  
 

1 Hour 

Charter Business NOC Lead Engineer 1-866-603-3199 

2nd  Level  
 

2 Hours 

Charter Business NOC  Supervisor  
 

1-866-603-3199 

       3rd  
Level  

 
3 Hours 

Charter Business NOC Manager 
Tony Barcellona           tbarcellona@chartercom.com 

502-420-7467 office 
502-442-4494 cell 

4th  Level  
 

4 Hours 

Charter Business NOC Director 
Dan Davidson           daniel.davidson@chartercom.com 
 

502-420-7419 office 
502-619-2799 cell 

5th Level  
 

6 Hours 

VP Network Ops & Engineer Services 
Keith Hayes                 keith.hayes@chartercom.com 
 

303-323-1347 office  
770-378-3595 cell 

 



Charter Communications                          CONFIDENTIAL   

  

 

 
 (a) TROUBLE REPORTING PROCEDURES 
 
To report suspected problems on the Recipient Fiber please call our CBNOC: Fiber Support One Call 

at (866) 603-3199. 
 
 We will request the following information related to the problem you are reporting: 
 
1. Company name 
2. Your name 
3. Your phone number 
4. Customer Contact name and number 
5. Customer account number 
6. Customer trouble ticket number 
7. Fiber origination and termination locations 
8. Time of trouble onset  
9. Nature of observed trouble 
10. Is Licensed Fiber(s) released to Recipient for testing? 
 
Once our CBNOC representative has received all of this information a Customer Trouble Ticket will 

be assigned and investigation of your report will begin.  Once the status of your report has been 
determined the CBNOC will contact your designated contact individual at the appropriate number to 
discuss the findings.  In any circumstance the initial response to Recipient will be within two (2) hours of 
the completion of the trouble reporting procedure.  

 
(b) Provider will, as necessary, arrange for unescorted access for Recipient to all sites of the 

System, subject to applicable contractual, underlying real property and other third-party limitations and 
restrictions. 

 
(c) In the event that any Maintenance hereunder requires a traffic roll or reconfiguration involving 

cable, fiber, electronic equipment, or regeneration or other facilities of the Recipient, then Recipient shall, 
at Provider’s reasonable request, make such personnel of Recipient available as may be necessary in 
order to accomplish such maintenance, which personnel shall coordinate and cooperate with Provider in 
performing such maintenance as required of Provider hereunder. 

 
  

IV. Facilities.  Provider shall maintain the System in a manner which will permit Recipient’s use, in 
accordance with the terms and conditions provided under the terms of the Agreement.   
 
V. Cable/Fibers. 

(a) Provider shall perform appropriate Preventative Maintenance on the System in accordance with 
Provider’s then current preventative maintenance procedures, which shall not substantially deviate from 
standard industry practice. 

 
(b) Provider shall have qualified representatives on site any time Provider has reasonable advance 

knowledge that another person or entity is engaging in construction activities or otherwise digging within 
five (5) feet of the Cable. 

 
 

VI. Subcontracting.  Provider may subcontract any of the maintenance services hereunder; provided 
that Provider shall require the subcontractor(s) to perform in accordance with the requirement and 
procedures set forth herein.  The use of any such subcontractor shall not relieve Provider of any of its 
obligations hereunder.   

 



ev 09/04/2013 7:46 AM Page 1 of 2
\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\Financial System\SR finanical system v2.docx 

City of Watsonville 

Finance Department 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: September 1, 2013 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Ezequiel Vega, Administrative Services Director 

SUBJECT: Consideration to Reserve Funds for the Acquisition of a Financial 

System 

AGENDA ITEM: September 10, 2013 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council of the City of Watsonville 

approve a resolution authorizing appropriating a reserve of $600,000 for the acquisition of a 

Financial System. 

DISCUSSION:   

The City of Watsonville currently utilizes a myriad of systems to support the ongoing operations 

of the City. Many of the systems, although adequate to meet many basic operational needs, were 

implemented long ago and do not have the technology to enable complex analysis of data 

without extensive utilization of staff hours. In some instances, even with the extended number of 

staff hours, the technology is not adequate to perform the analysis required or to modify a report 

to meet specific needs.  

The financial system is an example of this older technology (it was installed in 1996). As you are 

aware, there have been recommendations from various sources, including the previous 

administrative services director and the grand jury auditors, to replace the system. Although I 

agree with these recommendations, the City’s General Fund financial situation has not allowed 

for the investment to replace the existing system. However, due to the recent receipt of one time 

funds by the City’s General Fund (the City recently received payment of $365,000 in Property 

Tax Administrative Fee funds from Santa Cruz County), this is a good time to invest some of 

those funds in establishing a reserve to replace the financial system in the near future.  

Accordingly, staff recommends the City Council approves this staff report and corresponding 

resolution to establish a reserve to fund the acquisition of a financial system as follows to be 

funded by the General Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Airport Fund, and 

Library Fund in equal increments.  

If this resolution is approved, the City would begin the work to evaluate all the current systems 

the City operates and begin to develop the requirements to issue a request for qualifications for 

the acquisition of a new financial system which would integrate utility billing, accounts 

receivable, general ledger, human resources, community development, and possibly other 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1a

ezequiel.vega
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



ev 09/04/2013 7:46 AM Page 2 of 2 

\\fs4\User Docs$\ezequiel.vega\My Documents\Financial System\SR finanical system v2.docx 

functions currently supported by other systems within the City.  The actual cash expenditure for 

these funds could occur over a year or two year period depending on the timeline for the 

implementation of the new system. However, a tentative timeline would indicate half of the 

funds could be spent before June 30, 2013 and the other half could be spent in FY 2014-15. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

The recommendation supports the principles used to develop the 2013-14 Strategic Plan by 

focusing in the most effective utilization of resources.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
The General Fund portion of the cost for the implementation of the financial system will be 

funded with one time revenue and will not affect the City’s General Fund, fund balance. It is 

estimated that the General Fund contribution to the project will be $100,000.The Enterprise and 

Library funds will use fund balance to Fund this reserve. The total project costs are estimated to 

be $600,000. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

The City Council can choose not to approve this recommendation. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

 

cc: City Attorney  



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\Appropriation for Financial System.docx 
ri 9/5/2013 11:28:16 AM AJS ______ CJP ______ Finance ______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROPRIATING $600,000: $100,000 FROM 
GENERAL FUND, $100,000 FROM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND, 
$100,00 FROM SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND, $100,00 FROM SOLID 
WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND, $100,00 FROM AIRPORT ENTERPRISE 
FUND AND $100,000 FROM LIBRARY FUND FOR THE ACQUISITION 
OF A FINANCIAL SYSTEM  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the $600,00 budget appropriation: $100,00 from General Fund, $100,000 

from Water Enterprise Fund, $100,000 from Sewer Enterprise Fund, $100,000 from 

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund, $100,000 from Airport Enterprise Fund, and $100,000 

from Library Fund for the acquisition of a Financial System is hereby authorized. 

*********************************** 

CITY COUNCIL 8.1e

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 1 of 3
MER 8/28/2013 1:52:17 PM 

M:\Public Works & Utilities\Staff Reports\2013\09-10-13\Fiber Optic Project-Phase I\Staff Report Citywide Fiber Optics Project Phase 1 Infrastructure SP-
2.docx 

City of Watsonville 

Public Works And Utilities 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: August 27, 2013 

TO: Carlos J. Palacios, City Manager 

FROM: Steve Palmisano, Interim Director of Public Work and Utilities 

Mark Lamoreaux, Information Technology Manager 

Robert Berry, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Approval of Plans and Specifications and Calling for Bids for the 

Citywide Fiber Optic Project, Phase 1, Project No. ST-13-07 

AGENDA ITEM: September 10, 2013 City Council 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution approving plans and specifications and 

calling for bids for the Citywide Fiber Optic Project, Phase 1, Project ST-13-07.  Bids will be opened at 

11:00 A.M. on Tuesday, October 8, 2013. 

DISCUSSION: 

Background.  The City currently receives fiber optic data services at no cost as part of the original 

franchise agreement with Charter Communications. However, on June 30, 2014 this franchise agreement 

will expire and the service will no longer be free.   

The fiber optic system provides data and communication services at many City and other public 

facilities, and provides essential technology services throughout the City.  Some of the more critical 

systems include internet access, data connection, security systems, and gate controls for all City 

facilities. It also includes wireless access for the public at City facilities, and a wireless system used by 

the Police Department to access secure data at remote locations throughout the City. 

City staff has identified two options to address the loss of this free fiber optic service. 

1. The City can choose to build its own fiber optic system, or

2. The City may continue utilizing the Charter fiber optic system through a lease agreement.

Staff recommends investing in a Citywide fiber optic system as the most cost-effective solution, as 

discussed below. 

The Proposed Project.  The Citywide Fiber Optic project would involve running new fiber optic lines to 

critical locations throughout the City.  This would be completed by upgrading existing conduits and 

CITY COUNCIL 8.2a

angela.paz
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



Page 2 of 3 

MER 8/28/2013 1:52:17 PM 

M:\Public Works & Utilities\Staff Reports\2013\09-10-13\Fiber Optic Project-Phase I\Staff Report Citywide Fiber Optics Project Phase 1 Infrastructure SP-
2.docx 

 

utility boxes and installing new conduits by directional boring.  Once Phase 1 is completed, new fiber 

optic lines would be installed to the following locations: 

 

 Watsonville High School  

 Veterans Building 

 Fowle Reservoir 

 Freedom Library 

 Fire Station 2 / Watsonville Airport 

 

Estimated Project Cost: 

 

Project Phase Scope of Work Estimated 

Cost 

Phase 1 (September 2013) Running new conduits to critical locations;  

Repairing and upgrading existing conduits and utility 

boxes that were previously installed for other uses such 

as traffic signals. 

$300,000 

Phase 2 (January 2014).  

 

Installation of new fiber optic lines from the City 

Information Technology office to Fowle Reservoir, 

Watsonville High School, the Veterans Building, the 

Airport and Fire Station 2. 

$180,000 

Total Cost  $480,000 

 

 

Lease Option. An alternative to the City installing its own fiber optic system is to lease the service with 

Charter Communications under a new pricing schedule.  

 

Charter provided quotes for two levels of service.  

 

1. The Reduced Level of Service would provide the absolute minimal communications and data 

needs for the City, and could result in a reduction in a number of services, such as eliminating 

security cameras at a number of locations.  

 

2. The Current Level of Service provides the same level of service that the City currently has, 

would support current and future technology needs, and would provide an equivalent level of 

service as compared to the Citywide Fiber Optic Project. 

 

 

Lease Options 1 year 5 years 10 years 15 years 20 years 

1. Charter Lease: Reduced 

Level of Service 

$43,115 $215,575 $431,150 $646,725 $862,300 

2. Charter Lease: Current 

Level of Service 

$149,153 $745,764 $1,491,530 $2,237,295 $2,983,060 

 



Page 3 of 3 

MER 8/28/2013 1:52:17 PM 

M:\Public Works & Utilities\Staff Reports\2013\09-10-13\Fiber Optic Project-Phase I\Staff Report Citywide Fiber Optics Project Phase 1 Infrastructure SP-
2.docx 

 

Recommended Alternative.  The proposed Citywide Fiber Optic project is recommended as the most 

cost-effective solution.  In addition, it would provide a valuable communications and data infrastructure 

asset to the community. The project would pay for itself within 11 years, based on current lease prices 

from Charter. Alternatively, if the City chose to lease this service from Charter, these costs would 

continue into perpetuity.  

 

In addition, staff has already started discussions with several entities that are interested in leasing surplus 

fiber optic capacity that would be available as a result of this project, including the Santa Cruz Metro, 

Cruzio, and Salud Para La Gente. This additional revenue would result in a shorter cost-recovery period.   

 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

This project supports the strategic goal of improving the City’s infrastructure.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The cost of Phase 1 is estimated to be $300,000, and the cost of Phase 2 is estimated to be $180,000, for 

a total project cost of $480,000.  The project requires a budget appropriation of $480,000, and would be 

initially funded by the Library and Water Enterprise funds, although each of the City departments would 

contribute a proportionate share of the project costs based on benefit and use. A more detailed funding 

plan will be presented at a future meeting, as part of the Council’s decision to authorize the project for 

construction.   

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Council can choose not to approve the Citywide Fiber Optic project, and could choose to proceed with a 

lease agreement with Charter.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Project Map 

 

 

 

cc: City Attorney 



9

20

27

WATSONVILLE

WTS 2

WTS 1

Neighborhood
Services

Beach St
Garage

Vet's
Hall

PVWMA

Ramsay
Park

PVUSD
- The

Towers

Watsonville
High School

Muzzio
Park

Freedom
Library

FOWLE
Reservoir

WFD
Station II

RIVERSIDE DR
WEST LAKE AV

WEST RIVERSIDE DR

AMESTI RD

BUENAVISTA DR

AIRPORT BL

SO
UT

H G
RE

EN
 VA

LL
EY

 RD

HARKINS SLOUGH RD

EAST BEACH ST

MAIN ST

LOMA PRIETA AV

GR
EE

N
VA

LL
EY

RD

WEST BEACH ST

EAST LAKE AV

WALKER ST

HOLOHAN RD

INDUSTRIAL RD

LEE RD

FREEDOM BL

FR
EE

DO
M

BL

Prepared by Watsonville GIS Center 08/28/2013 (PWKS1206).

This Document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.
The City of Watsonville assumes no responsibility for any errors.

520 0 520 1,040 1,560 2,080260

Feet

Fiber Infrastructure

City of Watsonville
Legend

Fire Station

Conduit
Existing Conduit
Proposed Conduit
Existing Fiber Optic Path
Street
Streams
Levee

Lake
Slough

Target Locations
Priority Level

Critical
Non-Critical
Building Footprint
City Owned Land
City Park
City of Watsonville

®

1 inch = 1,750 feet

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



Reso No.           (CM) 
Q:\COUNCIL\2013\091013\CB ST-13-07 City Wide Fiber Optic Project.docx 
ri 9/4/2013 5:53:23 PM AJS  ______ CJP ______ PWU ______

1 

RESOLUTION NO.__________ (CM) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WATSONVILLE APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 
CALLING FOR BIDS FOR THE CITYWIDE FIBER OPTIC PHASE 1,
PROJECT NO. ST-13-07 AND AUTHORIZING A $480,000 BUDGET 
APPROPRIATION: $240,000 FROM LIBRARY ENTERPRISE FUND 
AND $240,000 FROM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE, 

CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the plans and specifications for the Citywide Fiber Optic Phase 1,

Project No. ST-13-07, copies of which are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, are

hereby ratified and approved. 

2. That the Purchasing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to call for

public competitive sealed bids for the above named project, and that the bids are to be 

opened in the City Hall Council Chambers, 250 Main Street, Watsonville, California, on 

Tuesday, October 8, 2013, at 11:00 A.M., and the City Clerk is hereby directed to give 

notice inviting such sealed bids in the time, form, and manner provided by law. 

3. That hand-carried bids should be delivered to the City of Watsonville, 250

Main Street, Watsonville, California, c/o Purchasing Officer. Bidders may mail bids at 

their own risk to the City of Watsonville, c/o Purchasing Officer, 250 Main Street, 

Watsonville, California 95076. 

4. That after the bids are opened, they shall be tabulated and analyzed and a

report submitted to the City Manager, who shall recommend the awarding, or other 

action, to the Council at its next regular meeting, or as soon thereafter as possible. 

5. That the budget appropriation of $480,000: $240,000 from Library

Enterprise Fund and $240,000 from Water Enterprise Fund is hereby authorized. 

*********************************** 

CITY COUNCIL 8.2e

erika.sanchez
Approved

carlos.palacios
Approved



INFORMATION ITEMS 
September 10, 2013

1.0 MINUTES 
--Planning Commission 
  June 4, 2013 

--Planning Commission 
  July 2, 2013 

--Parks and Recreation Commission 
  June 6, 2013 

2.0 PROCLAMATIONS 
--Watsonville – Kawakami-Mura Sister City Exchange Program 
  25th Anniversary  
  September 10, 2013 

3.0 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION 

--Award recipients recognized for their outstanding dedication to community 
  service in the annual National Night Out celebration. 
  Copies on File in the City Clerk’s Office 

City Council 10.1



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

1 

M I N U T E S 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

275 MAIN STREET, 4th FLOOR, WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
  
 June 4, 2013 6:09 P.M. 
 
In accordance with City policy, all Planning Commission meetings are recorded on audio and videotapes 
in their entirety, and the tapes are available for review in the Community Development Department 
(CDD). These minutes are a brief summary of action taken. 

 
1.0 ROLL CALL OF COMMISSIONERS   
 

Present were Commissioners Marty Corley, Rick Danna, Mireya Gomez-Contreras, 
Aurelio Gonzalez, Dobi Jenkins, Jenny Sarmiento, and Acting Chair Pedro Castillo. 
 
Staff members present were Secretary Marcela Tavantzis, Principal Planner Keith Boyle, 
Senior Planner Suzi Aratin, Interim Director of Public Works & Utilities Steve Palmisano, 
Assistant Director of Public Works & Utilities Maria Esther Rodriguez, Administrative 
Services Director Ezequiel Vega, Master Officer Leo Kafer, Recording Secretary Angela 
Paz and Interpreter Carlos Landaverry. 
 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Commissioner Gomez-Contreras led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3.0 PETITIONS AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
  
 Commissioner Danna welcomed CEIBA, he also stated that Community Development 

Department is in danger of losing 2 of their 3 Code Enforcement Officers and asked the 
community to talk to their Councilmember about safety concerns in the community.   

 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA   

 
4.1 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES FOR THE MAY 7, 2013 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked if it was standard procedure to only notify 

property owners. 
 
 Secretary Tavantzis stated that by law we are only required to notify property owners.  
 
 MOTION: It was moved by Commissioner Gonzalez, seconded by Commissioner 

Danna, and carried by and carried by the following vote to approve the Consent Agenda: 
 

 AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:  Corley, Danna, Gonzalez, Jenkins, Castillo 
 NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:  None 

 ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS:    Gomez-Contreras, Sarmiento 
  
 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

2 

5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

  

5.1 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT (PP2013-86), TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A CROSSFIT 
TRAINING FACILITY IN AN EXISTING INDUSTRIAL BUILDING, AT 57A HANGAR 
WAY (APN: 015-111-23), FILED BY CLIFF HODGES, APPLICANT.  

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Senior Planner Suzi Aratin. 

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Cliff Hodges, applicant, stated that he along with his partner, Sam Radetsky are 
the owners of Crossfit West and have been located in Santa Cruz for the last 5 
years. They are hoping to open the first Crossfit training facility in Watsonville.  
 
Sam Radetsky, applicant, stated that the Crossfit community is effective and is a 
very close nit community inside and outside the gym. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins inquired about the equipment that will be used for this type 
of training.  
 
Mr. Hodges stated that it’s an open space gym and the equipment consists of free 
weights, physical objects, and mobile equipment. 
 
Commissioner Danna asked if the 11 parking spaces would suffice for their 
business. 
 
Mr. Hodges stated that it is more than adequate given the fact that the use of the 
gym is by appointment only.  
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras wanted to know who would be teaching the 
classes and if youth can participate in this type of training.  
 
Mr. Radetsky stated that they have staff that will be teaching the classes and they 
do offer Crossfit Kids and Crossfit Teens in Santa Cruz and will offer it at their 
Watsonville facility. 
 
Acting Chairperson Castillo, inquired about hours of operations, usage of the Santa 
Cruz facility, and membership requirements.  
 
Mr. Hodges stated that officially the hours will be 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.; the facility 
use is mostly seasonal but it does operate year round, and that membership is 
open to all community members.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if employees are required to have any background 
checks. 
 
Mr. Hodges stated that all employees must go through a thorough background 
check and extensive training program to work at the facility.  

 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

3 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Acting Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing and hearing no public 
comments, closed the Public Hearing.  
 

a) Commission Discussion 
 

None 
 
b) Motion: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Jenkins, seconded by Commissioner Gomez-
Contreras, and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving 
Application (PP2013-86) for a Special Use Permit:  

 
 AYES: COMMISSIONERS: Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, 

Gonzalez, Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo  
 NOES:  COMMISSIONERS: None  
 ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   None 

 
 
5.2 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT WITH ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2012-251), TO MODIFY AN EXISTING 
27,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL BUILDING, TO ALLOW ESTABLISHMENT OF 
A 525-STUDENT CHARTER SCHOOL (CEIBA), AT 260 RIVERSIDE DRIVE (APN:  
017-161-51), FILED BY TOM BROWN, APPLICANT.  

 
 Commissioner Danna excused himself from this item due to a conflict of interest.  
  

a) Staff Presentation  
 

The staff report was given by Principal Planner Keith Boyle. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked if a fence would be installed along the back side of the 
building or a gate at the end. 
 
Principal Planner Boyle stated that there would be no additional fencing installed 
because it is a shared access.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked if Second Street residents were notified and had 
concerns on emergency exits.  
 
Mr. Boyle stated that the residents were notified and that possibly some residents 
would be speaking during the Public Hearing. The Fire Department reviewed and 
approved the emergency exits.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked where most of the students reside that will be 
attending CEIBA. 
 
Mr. Boyle stated that a list of student locations was provided to the Commission in 
the packet.   
 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

4 

Commissioner Jenkins stated that the junction at Walker Street and Second Street 
is a classic deep dip and asked if staff has considered improving that entrance.  
 
Assistant Director of Public Works & Utilities Maria Esther Rodriguez stated that 
the situation has not been addressed but it is something that can certainly be 
looked at and addressed.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if the school is taking into consideration the 
concerns that Youth Council expressed regarding school safety in the Second 
Street/Walker Street area and how they plan on addressing this issue.   
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that a member from the Youth Council is present and 
will speak on the subject.  

 
b) Applicant Presentation  

 
Tom Brown, applicant, stated that he will provide a snap shot of the organization, 
history of the extensive research for suitable school sites, student/parent and 
district prospective on this project, and answer any questions the Commission 
might have.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked Mr. Brown if he has considered using the vacant lot 
across from Locust Street for parking or play fields. 
 
Mr. Brown stated that he has and is eager to an open discussion with the property 
owner and has also looked at 220 Riverside Drive for possible usage of this 
property.  
 
Commission Gonzales asked if he plans to have designated people monitoring the 
vehicles entering and exiting during school hours. Since this area is not designated 
for crosswalks for students, how will crosswalks be addressed?  
 
Mr. Brown stated that one of the conditions of approval is to provide a student 
safety plan and in addition to the safety plan they will have parent volunteers 
stationed for traffic flow during drop off and pick up hours.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento readdressed her question regarding student safety.  
 
Mr. Brown indicated that since parents have been stationed at crosswalks, crime 
has decreased and the area is safer.  
 
Commissioner Corley asked if the students would have access to the south end of 
the building.  
 
Mr. Brown stated that bollards will be installed and the students would have access 
to the school building but there would be no traffic access.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez expressed his concern regarding the installation of the 
bollards on the south end of the building and blocking the entrance for the Fire 
Department.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that the Fire Department approved this as shown but a 
condition of approval could be added to make the bollards removable.  



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

5 

 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked how many high school students attend 
CEIBA and how many drive. How far along is the conversation with the property 
owner of the vacant lot across the from the school site? 
 
Mr. Brown stated that the school has 135 high school students and none of them 
drive. With regards to the vacant lot, they have just identified the property owner 
and no conversations have taken place.  
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked if this site is approved, where Physical 
Education classes be held? What kind of parent involvement have you had 
regarding moving into this new location and what will be done if this site is not 
approved?  
 
Mr. Brown stated that there are very few perfect sites available in Watsonville but 
the plan is to create a number of spaces on the driveway that surrounds the 
building for grade level exercise. Parents will be more involved once the conditional 
use permit is received and conclude negotiations with the landlord. Should this site 
not be approved he would utilize Plan B which is continued use of the Porter 
Building, Institute Language and Culture, and continued use of commercial space 
downtown.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins inquired about the status of the building on Airport 
Boulevard.  
 
Mr. Brown stated that he has no information on this building.  
 
Chief Business Officer with Pajaro Valley Unified School District Brett McFadden, 
stated that he has limited knowledge of the property.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked about the possibility of receiving a report 
regarding safety in this area.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that a report can be provided.  
 
CEIBA Student Dulce Sixtos, stated that the students did not feel safe at the new 
downtown location, however after adapting to the downtown area the students felt 
safer.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez inquired about combining the different age groups and 
how the situation would be handled.  
 
Mr. Brown stated that CEIBA is a very distinctive school culture and within the 
building itself, mini campuses will be created to separate the various age groups.  
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked if they were still recruiting students and 
what are the chances of outgrowing this facility.  
 
Mr. Brown stated that as a public charter school they are obligated to have a public 
lottery for enrollment in the event that applications exceed the number of spaces 
available. 525 students is a nice small school size and they don’t believe it will not 
be necessary to grow beyond that at this site.  
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

6 

Acting Chairperson Castillo asked about the school being an open campus and 
Riverside Drive being opened for traffic.   
 
Mr. Brown stated that CEIBA is a closed campus. 
 
Mr. Boyle addressed Acting Chairperson Castillo’s question and stated that there 
will be no traffic access to Riverside Drive.  
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Acting Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing 
 
The following community members spoke in favor of the approval of CEIBA 
Charter School: 
 
Christal Moore 
Jacquie Saporito 
Ulises Cisneros 
Juan Duque 
Juanita Alvarez 
Dulce Sixtos 
Brett McFadden 
Maria L Santillan 
Anna Rodriguez 
Anthony Tapiz  
E. Tapia 
Yolanda DeAnda 
Avelina Tapia 
Jesse Ramirez 
Maria Boiso-Dias 
Esmeralda 
Richard Rodriguez 
 
Hearing no additional public comments, Acting Chairperson Castillo closed the 
Public Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
None 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Corley, seconded by Commissioner Sarmiento, 
and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving Application 
(PP2012-251) for a Special Use Permit with Environmental Review:  

 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS:  Corley, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, 

Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo 
 NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:  None 
 ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:    None 
   ABSTAIN:  COMMISSIONERS:    Danna excused himself due to a conflict of 

interest   
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

7 

5.3  A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT THE CITY’S 2013-2015 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) WITH PROPOSED PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS AND FIND THE PROJECTS ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
GENERAL PLAN, FILED BY THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE. 

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Administrative Services Director Ezequiel Vega. 
 
Commissioner Corley inquired about Ohlone Parkway Improvement Phase II. 
 
Steve Palmisano, Interim Director of Public Works & Utilities stated that the 
section that will be improved is from the railroad crossing to Beach Street which 
has not been improved yet.  
 
Commissioner Danna asked if the Downtown Streetscape Improvements was for 
Main Street and what the improvements consist of.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis confirmed that it was for Main Street and “Welcome to 
Watsonville” signs and LED lights will be installed.  
 
Acting Chairperson Castillo inquired about the hanging purple ribbons throughout 
the City.  
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated that it was for “Relay for Life” because May was 
cancer awareness month.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked if the Airport runway projects were previously 
submitted.  
 
Administrative Service Director stated that these were new projects. 
 
Mr. Palmisano also stated that these projects were put out to bid but were put on 
hold due to Environmental Regulations and permit requirements.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins inquired about the Main Street/Freedom Boulevard 
2015/2016 operational improvements and the possibilities of a traffic circle.  
 
Mr. Palmisano stated that they will be working with Caltrans to conduct a study of 
options at this intersection but nothing has been decided.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez inquired about the relocation of sewers at Manana 
Lane.  
 
Mr. Palmisano stated that these are old sewer lines and the slope is not sloped 
enough to drain in a reasonable way.  
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked for clarification of the curb wrap 
program.  
 
Ms. Tavantzis stated that money is allocated every year to rehabilitate corners to 
proper accessibility requirements.   



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

8 

 
Commissioner Danna inquired about the costs to rehabilitate each corner.  
 
Mr. Palmisano stated that the cost depends on how severely out of order the 
corner is. 
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked how staff came to the conclusion that 
these would be these year’s projects and if there was any public input. 
 
Ms. Tavantzis stated that they base the selection of projects on the funding and 
need of each project and that the public input is taken into consideration. 
 
Acting Chairperson Castillo asked if the monies allocated for each department 
are to be spent within the department only.  
 
Mr. Vega stated that yes the monies allocated to each department should be 
used within the department.  
 
Commissioner Gonzalez inquired about school traffic; will there be coordination 
with CEIBA and has the money been allocated to specific sites?  
 
Ms. Tavantzis stated that Assistant Director of Public Works & Utilities Maria 
Esther Rodriguez will work with CEIBA on signage and crosswalks and that no 
specific sites have been selected. 
 
Commissioner Danna inquired about the $2.4 million improvements on Brodis 
Street and Alta Vista Avenue.  
 
Mr. Palmisano stated that it is the next phase of the Freedom Boulevard project.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked if the Pajaro Valley High School connecter is in 
addition to what is already planned to be built or this revised.  
 
Ms. Tavantzis stated that this is to develop a pedestrian trail to access Pajaro 
Valley High School from Airport Boulevard. 
 

  Public Hearing 
 

Acting Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing and hearing no public 
comments, closed the Public Hearing. 

 
c) Commission Discussion 

   
  None 

 
d) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Gomez-Contreras, seconded by Commissioner 
Gonzalez, and carried by the following vote to recommend to the City Council to 
adopt the City’s 2013-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with proposed 
public improvements and find the projects are consistent with the General Plan:  

 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\06-04-13\Minutes 060413.docx\ 

9 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS:  Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, 
Gonzalez, Jenkins, Sarmiento, Castillo 

NOES:  COMMISSIONERS: None   
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   None 
 

6.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

6.1 NOMINATIONS AND ELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
a) Nomination Period 

 
Secretary Tavantzis opened the nomination period for the election of 
Planning Commission Chairperson.  
 
Commissioner Sarmiento nominated Commissioner Castillo for Chairperson, 
seconded by Commissioner Corley.  
 
Hearing no further nominations, Secretary Tavantzis closed the nomination 
period. 
 

b) Motion Electing New Chairperson 
 

Commissioner Castillo was elected as Chairperson by the following vote of 7-
0: 
 
AYES: Corley, Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez, Jenkins, Sarmiento, 

Castillo.    
NOES: None     
ABSENT:  None 

 
6.2  NOMINATIONS AND ELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION VICE-

CHAIRPERSON 
  

a) Nomination Period 
 
Secretary Tavantzis opened the nomination period for the election of 
Planning Commission Vice-Chairperson.  
 
Commissioner Jenkins nominated Commissioner Corley for Vice-
Chairperson, seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez.  
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras nominated Commissioner Sarmiento for 
Vice-Chairperson, seconded by Commissioner Danna.  
 
Hearing no further nominations, Secretary Tavantzis closed the nomination 
period. 
 

b) Motion Electing New Vice-Chairperson  
 

Commissioner Corley was elected as Vice-Chairperson by the following vote 
of 6-1: 
 





  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\07-02-13\Minutes 070213.doc 

1 

 M I N U T E S 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WATSONVILLE 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

250 MAIN STREET, CITY HALL, WATSONVILLE, CALIFORNIA 
  
 Tuesday, July 2, 2013 6:03 P.M. 
 
In accordance with City policy, all Planning Commission meetings are recorded on audio and videotapes 
in their entirety, and the tapes are available for review in the Community Development Department 
(CDD). These minutes are a brief summary of action taken. 

 

3.0 ROLL CALL OF COMMISSIONERS   
 

Present were Commissioners Rick Danna, Mireya Gomez-Contreras, Aurelio Gonzalez, 
Dobie Jenkins, Jenny Sarmiento, Vice-Chair Marty Corley and Chair Pedro Castillo. 
 
Staff members present were Secretary Marcela Tavantzis, Senior Planner Suzi Aratin, 
Recording Secretary Deborah Muniz and City Interpreter Christian Miranda. 
 

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Commissioner Jenkins led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3.0 PETITIONS AND ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
  
 Tila Guerrero, business owner, spoke about the recent major remodel of her Mc 

Donald’s restaurant located on Main Street.  She indicated that her associate Lupe 
Zepeda was also present. Her other Mc Donald’s restaurant located on Freedom 
Boulevard is in a building that is over 40 years old.  It will be going through a scrap and 
rebuild later this year. She indicated that invitations were sent to the Commission to the 
July 25th grand opening of the Main Street location.  She also invited them to take a 
special tour of the restaurant prior to the grand opening and to call her associate Lupe at 
761-0671 to arrange a tour.  She thanked Marcela Tavantzis, Keith Boyle, Suzi Aratin, 
Richard Hicks, and Gail Browne of the Community Development Department and gave 
special recognition to Sofia Vazquez-Quintero. 

 
 Secretary Tavantzis announced that she would be leaving early to attend the City 

Council meeting.  She has an item on the agenda.  
 
4.0 CONSENT AGENDA   

 
4.1 MOTION APPROVING MINUTES FOR THE JUNE 4, 2013 REGULAR MEETING 
 

(This item was continued to the September 3, 2013 meeting since the minutes 
were not completed in time to be included in the meeting packet.)  

  
5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS  

5.1 A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT WITH ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW (PP2013-137), TO ALLOW THE 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\07-02-13\Minutes 070213.doc 

2 

ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUTO BODY REPAIR FACILITY, AT 1931 FREEDOM 
BOULEVARD (APN: 014-081-05 ), FILED BY JAIME RODRIGUEZ, APPLICANT.  

 
a) Staff Presentation  

 
The staff report was given by Senior Planner Suzi Aratin.  She stated the parking 
requirements have been met and the applicant will only be doing dry sanding.  If 
the applicant decides to do wet sanding in the future, the project is conditioned to 
comply with the requirements pertaining to drainage and wastewater treatment. 
 
Commissioner Danna asked how compliance is done on wet sanding. 
 
Ms. Aratin replied that the project can be conditioned for compliance checks. 
 
Secretary Tavantzis stated the City does test their storm drains for water quality.  
A sample test of the storm drain could be performed and it would detect any 
materials that should not be present. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if any comments were received from the 
neighboring properties. 
 
Ms. Aratin replied no.  The property has been used for auto repair for many 
years. 
 
Commissioner Corley asked about the storage of vehicles and is there a limit on 
the number of vehicles to be repaired. 
 
Ms. Aratin replied that the vehicles will be stored in the parking area and a limit 
on the number of vehicles to be repaired is not conditioned.   
 
Commissioner Gonzalez asked how the applicant plans to contain the dry 
sanding. 
 
Ms. Aratin replied that no repair work is allowed outside of the building and the 
applicant can address this question when he speaks. 
 

b) Applicant Presentation  
 

Jaime Rodriguez, applicant, stated his father started the business in 1981 and he 
took it over in 2000.  He has operated his business in Pajaro for three years and 
plans to keep it operating. 
 
Commissioner Jenkins asked if there are advantages to wet sanding; do some 
repairs require wet sanding; and does he perform wet sanding at his Pajaro 
business? 
 
Mr. Rodriguez replied that he does wet sand at his Pajaro shop.  All the dust from 
dry sanding goes into a vacuum. 
 
Commissioner Gomez-Contreras asked how dry sanding affects the worker. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez replied that he supplies respirators for all of his employees. 
 



  ADOPTED MINUTES        

   M:\CDD\PC PACKET\PCPKT 2013\07-02-13\Minutes 070213.doc 

3 

Commissioner Gonzalez asked if the new site will have a paint booth. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez replied that work can be performed on 4 vehicles comfortably at a 
time, including 1 in the paint booth. 
 
Commissioner Danna asked if the wrecked vehicles will be visible from Freedom 
Boulevard and how many vehicles will be at the shop at any given time. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez replied there is some visibility but he mostly works on new 
vehicles. He estimates there will be up to 7 cars at any given time. 
 
Commissioner Sarmiento asked how many vehicles can be repaired and how 
many employees does he plan to hire for the new location. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez replied he can only work on 5 vehicles at a time and he is hiring 
one person. 
 

c) Public Hearing 
 

Chairperson Castillo opened the Public Hearing and hearing no public 
comments, closed the Public Hearing. 

 
d) Commission Discussion 

 
None 

 
e) Motion: 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Danna, seconded by Commissioner Gomez-
Contreras, and carried by the following vote to adopt a resolution approving 
Application (PP2013-137) for a Special Use Permit with Environmental Review:  

 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:   Danna, Gomez-Contreras, Gonzalez,  
                                                           Jenkins, Sarmiento, Corley, Castillo   
NOES:  COMMISSIONERS:   None    
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:   None 
 

6.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 
6.1 PRESENTATION ON DOWNTOWN COMMITTEE BY REDEVELOPMENT MANAGER 

KURT OVERMEYER 
 
 Redevelopment Manager Kurt Overmeyer spoke about the current conditions of the 

downtown area.  Some of the issues are: rents are low; street activity is low; closed or 
vacant buildings; nonsufficient parking; many uses are not allowed; the City’s alcohol 
and sign ordinances are confusing; sidewalks and buildings lack maintenance.  Ten 
million visitors come to the Monterey Bay area every year and most of them go to Santa 
Cruz or Monterey.  Watsonville has a lot to offer visitors; however, not enough has been 
done to promote the City’s amenities.  

 
 Chairperson Castillo asked about the Downtown Subcommittee. 
 





 

 3 
 

 MINUTES     
 CITY OF WATSONVILLE 
 PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
      

 Old City Council Chambers 
City Hall, 250 Main Street, Watsonville 

 
June 6, 2013     6:30 P.M. 

===================================================================== 

1.0 ROLL CALL      
Chair Garcia called the meeting to order             

 
Commissioners:    DeHart, García, Hurtado-Aldana, Lopez, Orozco, Sauer  
 
Commissioners Absent:  Rodríguez 
 
Staff:   Parks and Community Services Director Ana Espinoza 
   Parks and Community Services Assistant Director Brad Blachly 
   Interim Recreation Supervisor Israel Tirado & Tony Roman 
   Administrative Assistant I Marco Diaz    

      
2.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
a) Oral Communications from Commissioners & Members of the Public 

Commissioner DeHart commented that the recreational guide released by the 
Department is comprehensive. For comparison, DeHart also shared guides that 
were distributed in the Castroville area and at the COPA meeting. Commissioner 
Orozco reminded the Commission of the next COPA meeting that is to be held at 
Assumption Church on August 21 at 7 p.m. Orozco stated that the COPA group 
is progressing well and the community members have been divided into four 
groups: Prevention/Intervention, Parental Engagement and Building 
Relationships. The focus of COPA is citywide. Commissioner Sauer shared with 
the Commission the passing of Mike Chavez and paid tribute to him for all his 
work and efforts. Commissioner García informed the Commission that she 
attended the Youth City Council meeting where a safety report was presented. In 
the report, Parks & Community Services Department was mentioned two times. 
García requested a copy of the safety report to review the recommendations 
Youth City Council has for Parks & Community Services Department. García 
submitted a blog to Watsonville Patch on Economic Development. The blog 
mentions the demise of the budget and the impact it has on all departments. She 
invited the Commission to visit the website by using Google and keywords 
Watsonville Patch. García proposed that item 9.1 Director’s Report on the 
agenda be moved to before 6.0 Presentations & Reports.       

                                                          
b)      Correspondence Addressed/Referred to Commission 

     None 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 2 

3.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
3.1 Motion to Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 2, 2013 

 

Commissioner DeHart moved to Approve the Consent Agenda, 
Commissioner Sauer seconded the motion 

Chair Garcia took a vote:        

  Ayes:  Dehart, García, Hurtado-Aldana, Lopez,   
    Orozco, Sauer      
  Noes:  None        
  Abstains: None        
  Absent: Rodríguez                                                                                

 

The motion passed. 

 
3.2 Motion to Cancel July 4, 2013 Commission Meeting due to City 

observation of July 4th Holiday and to cancel August 1, 2013 
Commission meeting due to preparations for the Strawberry Festival 
on August 3 & 4, 2013 
 

Commissioner Dehart moved to Cancel July 4, 2013 Commission 
Meeting due to City observation of July 4th Holiday and to cancel 
August 1, 2013 Commission meeting due to preparations for the 
Strawberry Festival on August 3 & 4, 2013 

Commissioner Orozco seconded the motion 

Chair Garcia took a vote:        

  Ayes:  Dehart, García, Lopez, Hurtado-Aldana,   

    Orozco, Sauer      

  Noes:  None        

  Abstains:  None        

  Absent:  Rodríguez 

 

The motion passed.     

   
4.0 ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

None 
 
 

5.0 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 3 
 

6.0 PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
6.1 Report on 2013 Strawberry Festival by Interim Recreation Supervisor 

Israel Tirado- Interim Recreation Supervisor Israel Tirado explained to the 
Commission that negotiations with carnival promoter resulted in a 70/30 split 
with the focus on increasing revenue. Tirado is proposing eliminating the 
carnival on Friday and extending the hours on Saturday night. Tirado 
discussed the various vendors and presented four categories, food, arts & 
crafts, commercial and non profit. Currently there are 16 food vendors and 3 
pending, 3 arts & crafts vendors and 1 pending, 9 commercial vendors and 1 
pending, and 1 non profit vendor and 3 pending. Commissioner García 
questioned the cost for non profit vendors to participate. Tirado stated that 
there is no cost to non profit vendors unless they need to be provided with 
equipment. Commissioner Orozco requested that the Commission be sent a 
non profit application to participate in the Strawberry Festival. Tirado informed 
the Commission that Romo Park will be used as a beer/wine garden. Stars of 
Justice will be responsible for beer sales. Tirado is working with community 
organizations to highlight local talent for entertainment.  

 
  

7.0 NEW BUSINESS  
None 

 
 
8.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None             
 
 
9.0 REPORTS 

9.1 Director’s Report  
A. Report on Draft FY 2013-15 Budget and Proposed Service   

Reductions-Director Espinoza noted that the Department has 
move forward with many reductions while maintaining the same 
level of services in the past years. For the upcoming FY 2013-15 
Budget the Parks & Community Services Department produced a 
1% and 3% budget reduction scenario and a status quo budget. 
The 3% budget reduction scenario is being put forth. This translates 
to $192,000 in reductions. To meet the needs of customer service 
and provide administrative support, the Department has gone 
through staff reorganization. The staff reorganization will provide 
$90,000 in savings to the General Fund. Director Espinoza 
provided an overview on the proposed reductions and the impact to 
services provided to the community. Director Espinoza informed the 
Commission of the City Council Budget Hearing that is scheduled 
for June 11 at 6:30 p.m. The Agenda for the City Council has been 
posted and a staff report of the budget is available. Commissioner 
García asked about the possibility of using volunteers as a solution 
for staff reductions. Director Espinoza provided details about the 
Volunteer Program that is managed by Recreation Coordinator 
Marisol Jimenez. Jimenez recruits and performs a background 
check on potential volunteers prior to assigning them to a task. The 



 

 4 

challenge is finding volunteers who can commit to programs. 
Commissioner Orozco questioned if a volunteer fair has been 
considered and is willing to assist. García requested that a copy of 
the proposed reductions presentation be provided to the 
Commission. García asked about the status of the non profit. 
Director Espinoza stated that files of incorporation have been filed 
and the process for identifying individuals who will join together to 
approve and adopt by-laws has begun. When the by-laws are 
approved, the Department can file for exemption of non profit with 
IRS. The process can take 6-8 months. Director Espinoza informed 
the Commission of the Annual Commissioners BBQ on August 22 
at the Corralitos Filter Plant. Director Espinoza presented new 
office hours at the Customer Service Center to be Monday through 
Thursday, 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. As requested by the Commission, 
Director Espinoza provided a report on the FLYERS program that 
lists the schools the participants of the program attend. Also 
requested by the Commission is a calendar of events. Assistant 
Director Brad Blachly demonstrated how to use the City website to 
find and use the calendar of events. 

     
 
10.0 ADJOURNMENT 

  The next Commission meeting will be held on September 5, 2013 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS (Bolded Items included in current packet)  

3.1    Minutes of the May 2, 2013 Meeting 
9.1    Staff Report on Draft FY 2013-15 Budget and Proposed Service 

Reductions 
9.1 Department Newsletter 

State of California) 

   )Ss. 

County of Santa Cruz) 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by 

the City of Watsonville, in the Parks & Recreation 

Department that I posted this Agenda on the outdoor 

bulletin board in front of City Hall, 250 Main Street   

    

 

Dated:       

 

Signature____________________________________ 




	Agenda
	Item 4.1 SA Minutes
	Item 4.2 Successor Agency litigation loan Report
	Item 4.2 Successor Agency Lititgation Loan Resolution
	Item 4.1 Report of Disbursements
	Item 4.2 Minutes
	Item 4.3a Rejection of Claim Klay Resolution
	Item 4.3 Rejection of Claim Urban PCS Resolution
	Item 4.3 Rejection of Claim Vitol Resolution
	Item 4.3  Rejection of Claim Zuniga Resolution
	Item 4.4 WMC 3-1 Claim & Warrants Ordinance
	Item 7.1a Charter Agreement Report
	Item 7.1e Charter Agreement MOU Resolution
	Item 7.1f Charter Agreement Master Fiber Resolution
	Item 8.1a Financial System Report
	Item 8.1e Financial System Resolution
	Item 8.2a Citywide Fiber Optics Project Phase 1 Report
	Item 8.2e Citywide Fiber Optics Project Phase 1 Resolution
	Item 10.1 Information Items



